
August 6, 2014           Agenda 
1 

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council/Planning 
Commission/Public Financing Authority/Housing Authority/I.B. Redevelopment Agency 
Successor Agency regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the office of the City Clerk located at 825 Imperial Beach Blvd., Imperial Beach, CA 
91932 during normal business hours. 

A G E N D A  

CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 
CITY COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AUTHORITY 
IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
AUGUST 6, 2014 

Council Chambers 
825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 

Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

REGULAR & CLOSED SESSION MEETINGS – 6:00 P.M. 
 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL ALSO SITS AS THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION, 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, HOUSING AUTHORITY AND IMPERIAL BEACH 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

The City of Imperial Beach is endeavoring to be in total compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA).  If you require assistance or auxiliary aids in order to participate at City Council meetings, 

please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (619) 423-8301, as far in advance of the meeting as possible. 

REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA CHANGES 

MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF 

PUBLIC COMMENT- Each person wishing to address the City Council regarding items not on the 
posted agenda may do so at this time.  In accordance with State law, Council may not take action on an 
item not scheduled on the agenda.  If appropriate, the item will be referred to the City Manager or placed 
on a future agenda. 

PRESENTATIONS (1) 

None.  

CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.6)-All matters listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine 

by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items, 
unless a Councilmember or member of the public requests that particular item(s) be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately.  Those items removed from the Consent Calendar will be discussed at 
the end of the Agenda. 

2.1 MINUTES. 
 Recommendation:  Approve the Regular Meeting minutes of the June 4, 2014.   

2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER.  (0300-25) 
 Recommendation:  Ratify the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 84895 

through 85061 (84966 voided) with a subtotal amount of $1,305,014.54 and Payroll 
Checks/Direct Deposits 46037 through 46072 for a subtotal amount of $180,727.16 for a 
total amount of $1,485,741.70. 

Continued on Next Page 

 
  



August 6, 2014           Agenda 
2 

CONSENT CALENDAR (Continued) 

2.3 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7508 APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A SIXTH AMENDMENT TO AN AGREEMENT FOR 
ADMINISTRATION OF TAXICAB AND OTHER FOR-HIRE VEHICLE REGULATIONS 
BETWEEN SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM (MTS) AND THE CITY 
OF IMPERIAL BEACH (CITY).  (0680-70 & 680-85) 

 Recommendation:  Adopt resolution. 

2.4 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2014-1146 (ZONING 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 2013-2021 IMPERIAL BEACH HOUSING ELEMENT) 
GPA 100060/ MF 1060.  (0610-95) 
Recommendation:  Waive further reading and adopt Ordinance No. 2014-1146.  

2.5 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7507 AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF A 
REPLACEMENT CITY VEHICLE (EQUIPMENT #624 – PARKS/FACILITIES DIVISION 
DODGE RAM TRUCK) AND APPROPRIATING $28,000 FROM THE VEHICLE 
REPLACEMENT INTERNAL SERVICES FUND FOR THIS PURCHASE.  (0380-10) 

 Recommendation:   
1. Receive report and 
2. Adopt resolution. 

2.6 LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR A LEGISLATIVE INITIATIVE FOR RAPID WATER 
QUALITY TESTING (SB 1395 BLOCK).  (0460-20) 
Recommendation:  That the City Council approves a letter of support for Senate Bill 
1395, authored by Senator Marty Block and related to rapid water quality testing. 

ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING (3) 

None.  

PUBLIC HEARINGS (4) 

None.  

REPORTS (5.1 - 5.5) 

5.1 PROPOSED BSA EAGLE PROJECT PRESENTATION – OCHOA.  (0940-10) 
Recommendation: 
1. Receive report; 
2. Receive a presentation from Armando Ochoa regarding the proposed improvements; 
3. Comment and direct staff and Armando Ochoa regarding the design of the proposed 

project; and 
4. Authorize the City Manager to sign the Eagle Project plan for Armando Ochoa to 

continue the project development and construction as approved by City Council and 
City staff. 

5.2 PROPOSED BSA EAGLE PROJECT PRESENTATION – ENGELBRECHT.   
(0910-10 & 0940-10) 
Recommendation: 
1. Receive report; 
2. Receive a presentation from Ryan Engelbrecht regarding the proposed 

improvements; 
3. Comment and direct staff and Ryan Engelbrecht regarding the design of the 

proposed project; and 
4. Authorize the City Manager to sign the Eagle Project plan for Ryan Engelbreht to 

continue the project development and construction as approved by City Council and 
City staff. 

Continued on Next Page 

  



August 6, 2014           Agenda 
3 

REPORTS (Continued) 

5.3 NAVAL OUTLYING LANDING FIELD IMPERIAL BEACH AIRPORT LAND USE 
COMPATIBILITY PLAN (NOLF-IB ALUCP) GPA 140038/ MF 1158.  (0620-80) 
Recommendation: 
1. Receive presentation by the Airport Authority; 
2. Entertain any public testimony; and 
3. Provide comments on the draft ALUCP to the Airport Authority.  

5.4 REPORT ON STORM WATER PERMIT ORDER R9-2013-0001 AND DEVELOPMENT 
OF WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PLANS.  (0230-70) 
Recommendation:  Receive report and presentation on Stormwater Permit Order R9-
2013-0001 and update on the development of Water Quality Improvement Plans. 

5.5 CITY COUNCIL BRIEFING NO. 3 – PALM AVENUE MIXED USE & COMMERCIAL 
CORRIDOR MASTER PLAN AND POTENTIAL STATE ROUTE 75 (PALM AVENUE) 
RELINQUISHMENT ANALYSIS DISCUSSION.  (0150-30, 0480-80 & 0600-20) 
Recommendation: 
1. Receive City Council Briefing No. 3 on the Palm Avenue Mixed Use and Commercial 

Corridor Master Plan (Master Plan); 
2. Authorize staff and its consultant team to proceed with the project and the design of 

the Master Plan as currently proposed; and 
3. Authorize staff to provide a written request to Caltrans to proceed with the next 

phase of the relinquishment assessment process including preparation of a Project 
Scope Summary Report (PSSR). 

I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (6.1) 

 6.1 ADOPTION OF SUCCESSOR AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. SA-14-43 AND CITY 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7510 APPROVING AND RECOMMENDING TO 
THE OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT REGARDING 
RETENTION AND EXPENDITURE OF BOND PROCEEDS FROM 2010 TAX 
ALLOCATION BONDS BETWEEN THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND THE CITY OF 
IMPERIAL BEACH AS AN ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATION, AND APPROVING 
RELATED ACTIONS.  (0418-50) 
Recommendation:  That the Successor Agency and City Council approve and enter into 
an Agreement Regarding Retention and Expenditure of Bond Proceeds from 2010 Tax 
Allocation Bonds (the “Agreement”) in order for the City to receive and retain the Bond 
Proceeds for the City’s use and expenditure consistent with the purposes set forth in the 
Trust Indenture and the Official Statement for the 2010 Tax Allocation Bonds by taking 
the following actions: 
1. Successor Agency adoption of Resolution No. SA-14-43 approving and 

recommending to the Oversight Board approval of the Agreement as an Enforceable 
Obligation, and approving related actions; and 

2. City Council adoption of Resolution No. 2014-7510 approving the Agreement and 
related actions. 

 
ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR (IF ANY) 

ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 

  



August 6, 2014           Agenda 
4 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 

CLOSED SESSION (1) 

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 

Title: City Manager 

RECONVENE AND ANNOUNCE ACTION (IF APPROPRIATE) 

ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION MEETING 

 

The Imperial Beach City Council welcomes you and encourages your continued interest and 
involvement in the City’s decision-making process. 

FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE, A COPY OF THE AGENDA AND COUNCIL MEETING PACKET MAY BE 
VIEWED IN THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AT CITY HALL OR ON OUR WEBSITE AT 

www.imperialbeachca.gov 

 

          /s/    

Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 

http://www.imperialbeachca.gov/


MINUTES 
CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

CITY COUNCIL 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 
HOUSING AUTHORITY 

IMPERIAL BEACH REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
 

JUNE 4, 2014 
Council Chambers 

825 Imperial Beach Boulevard 
Imperial Beach, CA  91932 

CLOSED SESSION MEETING – 5:15 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING – 6:00 P.M. 

 
CLOSED SESSION CALL TO ORDER 
MAYOR JANNEY called the Closed Session meeting to order at 5:16 p.m. 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers present:  Bilbray, Spriggs, Bragg 
Councilmembers absent:  None 
Mayor Present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem Present:  Patton 
Staff Present: City Manager Hall, City Attorney Lyon, City Clerk Hald 

CLOSED SESSION 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS recused himself from discussion on Closed Session Item Nos. 1 
and 2 due to the location of his residence. 
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY PATTON, TO ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
UNDER: 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1)  
Case No. 37-2014-00003054-CU-EI-CTL 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1)  
Case No. 37-2013-00081555-CU-EI-CTL 

3. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
Pursuant to Government Code §54956.8: 
Property:  1075 8th Street, Imperial Beach, CA 91932, APN 626-400-71-00 
Agency Negotiator:  City Manager and City Attorney 
Negotiating Parties: County of San Diego 
Under Negotiation:  Instruction to Negotiators will concern price and terms of payment 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
ADJOURN CLOSED SESSION 
MAYOR JANNEY adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 5:17 p.m. and he reconvened the 
meeting to Open Session at 6:00 p.m. 

Reporting out of Closed Session, CITY ATTORNEY LYON announced City Council discussed 
Closed Session Item Nos. 1 through 3, City Council gave direction and no reportable action was 
taken. 

DRAFT Item No. 2.1  



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 2 of 9 
 
REGULAR MEETING CALL TO ORDER 
MAYOR JANNEY called the Regular City Council meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers present:  Bilbray, Spriggs, Bragg 
Councilmembers absent:  None 
Mayor Present:   Janney 
Mayor Pro Tem Present:  Patton 
Staff Present: City Manager Hall, City Attorney Lyon, City Clerk Hald, 

Public Safety Director Clark, Senior Planner Foltz, Public 
Works Director Levien, Assistant City Manager Wade 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
MAYOR JANNEY led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

AGENDA CHANGES 
None. 

MAYOR/COUNCIL REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE/COMMUNITY 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/REPORTS ON ASSIGNMENTS AND COMMITTEES 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS gave an update on the Metro Wastewater Commission JPA 
meeting.  He stated that there is a major effort by the Metro Wastewater Commission JPA and 
the City of San Diego to work on a project that would recycle water to a high standard so that it 
is drinkable.  He noted that there is support for this type of approach given the rising cost of 
water and the drought conditions.  He said that while most of the other members of the JPA 
have approved resolutions of support, the Imperial Beach City Council has not due to technical 
issues.  He was hopeful that the city Council will consider a resolution of support once the 
technical issues have been worked out. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY reported on his attendance at a Binational Summit on the Tijuana River 
Valley Recovery Strategy.  While there, he was able to express gratitude to the Mayor, one of 
the Councilmembers and the people of Tijuana for the work they have done on the Tijuana 
River Valley over the past decade. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS announced that cross-border cooperation between non-
governmental organizations will be considered at the next International Boundary and Water 
Commission meeting.  He then asked City Manager Hall for an update on the 4th of July 
Fireworks Show. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY announced that Candy Unger is interested in giving an update on 
her fundraising efforts for the 4th of July Fireworks Show but is running late to this meeting. 
 
MOTION BY BRAGG, SECOND BY SPRIGGS, TO PULL ITEM NOS. 2.5 AND 2.6 (WHICH 
RELATE TO THE 4TH OF JULY FIREWORKS SHOW) FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
FOR DISCUSSION AT THE END OF THE AGENDA.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY STAFF 
PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR CLARK introduced Lifeguard Sgt. Art Ayala, Lifeguard II Jesus 
Gonzalez and Lifeguard Sgt. Jason Lindquist, who recently rescued a surfer from the water. 
 
ART AYALA spoke about his rescue effort to save a surfer clinging to a pier piling.  The surfer 
showed his appreciation by giving $500 which will be donated to the Junior Lifeguard program. 



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 3 of 9 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR CLARK announced that the Fire Service will be recognized at the 
San Diego County Fair on June 27th and that the Imperial Beach Engine 39 Fire Association will 
have a car in the Demolition Derby. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
CITY CLERK HALD announced no speaker slips were submitted. 
 
PRESENTATIONS (1) 
None.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (2.1-2.4) 
MOTION BY SPRIGGS, SECOND BY PATTON, TO APPROVE CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM 
NOS. 2.1 THROUGH 2.4.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
2.1 MINUTES. 
 Approved the minutes of the April 16, 2014 Regular City Council Meeting.   
2.2 RATIFICATION OF WARRANT REGISTER. (0300-25) 
 Ratified the following registers: Accounts Payable Numbers 84588 through 84687 with a 

subtotal amount of $275,177.43 and Payroll Checks/Direct Deposits 45924 through 
45946 for a subtotal amount of $151,393.23 for a total amount of $426,570.66. 

2.3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2014-1145 AMENDING 
THE IMPERIAL BEACH MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING CHAPTER 2.32 CREATING THE 
IMPERIAL BEACH PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE.  (0120-80) 

 City Council approved the reading by title only, waived the reading in full and adopted 
Ordinance No. 2014-1145. 

2.4 DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATE AND ALTERNATE(S) FOR LEAGUE OF 
CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE – SEPTEMBER 3- 5, 2014.  (0140-10) 
1. City Council designated Mayor Janney as the voting delegate and Councilmember 

Spriggs as the voting alternate for the 2014 League Annual Conference Business 
Meeting. 

2. Directed the City Clerk to complete and submit a Voting Delegate/Alternate Form to 
the League’s office by Friday, August 15, 2014. 

ORDINANCES – INTRODUCTION/FIRST READING (3) 
None.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS (4.1) 
4.1 AT&T (APPLICANT); ADMINISTRATIVE COASTAL PERMIT (ACP 130060), 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP 130061), DESIGN REVIEW CASE (DRC 130062), 
AND SITE PLAN REVIEW (SPR 130063) TO CONSTRUCT A NEW FREESTANDING 
FAUXTREE WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT 
SHELTER AT 772 13th STREET (APN 626-312-11-00) IN THE C/MU-1 (GENERAL 
COMMERCIAL & MIXED-USE) ZONE. MF 1135; RESOLUTION 2014-7491. (0600-20) 

 
MAYOR JANNEY declared the public hearing open.  
 
SENIOR PLANNER FOLTZ gave a PowerPoint presentation on the item and requested City 
Council’s consideration of the three design options for the faux tree. 
 
SHELLY KILBOURNE, representing AT&T, stated that she is available to answer questions. 



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 4 of 9 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BRAGG expressed concern about a lack of lighting on the backside of the 
parking lot and requested that when similar projects are considered in the future, to include the 
addition of lighting. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY PATTON, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7491 
APPROVING ADMINISTRATIVE COASTAL PERMIT (ACP 130060), CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT (CUP 130061), DESIGN REVIEW CASE (DRC 130062), AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 
(SPR 130063), WHICH MAKES THE NECESSARY FINDING FOR A 40-FOOT BROADLEAF 
FAUX TREE WIRELESS FACILITY AND PROVIDES CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL AND STATE REQUIREMENTS.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
CHRISTINE MOORE, Director of External Affairs, spoke about AT&T’s partnership with the City 
and the Imperial Beach community.  She understood that the AT&T building on Palm Ave. is 
located at the gateway into the City and she said that there have been discussions about 
beautifying the building. 
 
REPORTS (5.1-5.3) 
5.1 POLICY DISCUSSION ABOUT EXTENDING STREET-END PARKING TIMES ALONG 

SEACOAST DRIVE, AND DIRECTION FROM COUNCIL RESULTING IN POSSIBLE 
FUTURE ACTION.  (0920-95) 

 
PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR CLARK gave a report and asked for City Council’s consideration 
and input on the item.   
 
MAYOR JANNEY commented that extending the hours allows the public better access to the 
businesses and recreational opportunities on the beachfront, while still prohibiting overnight 
parking. 
 
MAYOR PRO TEM PATTON stated that it is a great start and supported the item. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS spoke in support of the item and noted that surfers would benefit 
in the mornings and the businesses would benefit in the evenings.  He questioned having a 
12:00 a.m. restriction in the residential areas. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY suggested that the 12:00 a.m. restriction be applied to the street ends 
between Palm Ave. and Imperial Beach Blvd., that the 10:00 p.m. restriction remain in place at 
Dunes Park (Daisy Ave.) and the 5:00 a.m. restriction be applied along Seacoast Drive 
(including South Seacoast Drive). 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BRAGG expressed concern about the public getting confused about a 
12:00 a.m. restriction on Date Ave. and a 10:00 p.m. restriction on Daisy Ave.  She questioned 
why the restrictions differed. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR CLARK explained that Daisy Ave. is parking for Dunes Park. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY added that the parking area for Dunes Park is not considered a street end. 
 
PUBLIC SAFETY DIRECTOR CLARK announced that he has received direction from City 



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 5 of 9 
 
Council and will return with a staff report for City Council’s consideration. 
 
5.2 RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7494 AWARDING A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT, TO WIT: 

ANNUAL MAIN LINE REPAIRS BY MICROTUNNELING (W12-202) AND 
APPROPRIATION OF AN ADDITIONAL $430,280 FROM THE SEWER ENTERPRISE 
FUND CIP RESERVE TO PROJECT W12-202.  (0830-10) 

 
CITY MANAGER HALL gave a PowerPoint presentation explaining the Sewer Enterprise Fund.  
He also spoke about the need to move forward with the project due to the severe condition of 
the deteriorated line.  He explained that the bids received were higher than the engineer’s 
estimate due to the unique specialty of microtunneling.  He recommended approval of the 
contract with Blue Pacific Engineering and Construction and appropriating an additional 
$430,280 to complete the project. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN continued with a presentation on the construction details 
of the project. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS expressed concern about the variance between the the high bid 
amounts and the significantly lower cost estimate.  He questioned if the correct engineer was 
utilized. 
 
MAYOR PRO TEM PATTON stated that time is of the essence and a line failure would be 
catastrophic.  He spoke in support for completing the project.  
 
In response to questions of Councilmember Bragg, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN 
spoke about the logistics of the project, the need to involve CalTrans, and the potential impacts 
to traffic. 
 
MOTION BY PATTON, SECOND BY BILBRAY, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7494 
AWARDING A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT, TO WIT: ANNUAL MAIN LINE REPAIRS BY 
MICROTUNNELING (W12-202) AND APPROPRIATION OF AN ADDITIONAL $430,280 
FROM THE SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND CIP RESERVE TO PROJECT W12-202.  MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY spoke about the importance of informing the public and MTS about the 
changes to traffic as a result of this project. 
 
5.3 CONSIDERATION AND POTENTIAL ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7493 

UPDATING COUNCIL POLICY 114 REGARDING CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
ATTENDANCE AT CITY SPONSORED PUBLIC WORKSHOPS.  (0410-95) 

  
CITY MANAGER HALL introduced the item.  He stated that currently City policy does not allow 
City Councilmembers to attend City sponsored workshops. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY LYON gave a brief overview of the Ralph M. Brown Act.  She noted that a 
meeting is defined as any congregation of a majority of the members of a legislative body at the 
same time and place to hear, discuss, or deliberate upon any item that is within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  She also noted that if a majority of the City Council 
attends a City sponsored workshop, it would have to be noticed as a City Council meeting.   
 



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 6 of 9 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS spoke about the importance of having opportunities to hear how 
the community is responding to particular proposals.  He understood that having members of 
the City Council attend a meeting might stifle public opinions but he noted that there is a 
difference between being an observer and a participant at a meeting.  He spoke in support for 
having the City Council attend workshops as long as it is understood that attendance at 
meetings would be as observers only.   
 
MAYOR JANNEY recommended the addition of a statement that the City Council is willing to 
not participate in discussions at City sponsored workshops.    
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY suggested a rotation of City Councilmembers to determine who 
goes to workshop meetings. 
 
MAYOR PRO TEM PATTON spoke in support for having City Councilmembers attend City 
Council workshops as observers only. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BRAGG agreed with attending workshops as observers only.  She also 
spoke in support for a policy that is more liberating.  She spoke about having a policy that allows 
as many City Councilmembers attend City sponsored workshops as desired and she spoke in 
support for noticing the meetings. 
 
In response to Councilmember Spriggs’ question about compliance with the Brown Act, CITY 
ATTORNEY LYON stated that staff will handle the meetings on a case by case basis and 
depending on the subject matter will remove as many formalities as possible. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY asked City Manager Hall to return to City Council with a revised policy that 
includes the modifications recommended by City Council.   
 
I.B. REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY SUCCESSOR AGENCY REPORTS (6.1) 
6.1 CONSIDERATION AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7492 AUTHORIZING 

THE CITY TO PROCEED WITH AN ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP 
PROJECT S14-104) FOR ALLEY NUMBERS 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 32, 33, 34, 35, 
36, 49, AND 50 AND RESOLUTION NO. SA-14-42 CONDITIONALLY AUTHORIZING 
THE ALLOCATION OF $1,274,584 OF 2010 TAX ALLOCATION BOND PROCEEDS 
FOR THE PROJECT SUBJECT TO PLACEMENT OF THE PROJECT ON THE NEXT 
RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE (ROPS 14-15B) AND 
OBTAINING THE REQUIRED APPROVAL BY THE OVERSIGHT BOARD AND 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE.  (0418-50 & 0720-08) 

 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN gave an overview on the history of the item.  He noted 
that the drawings were previously prepared under the standards that were in effect eight years 
ago and therefore need to be updated.  Additionally, the design of each alley needs to be 
evaluated and updated to meet the standards of the permit issued by the Regional Water 
Quality Control Board. 
 
ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER WADE reported on the funding option.  He recommended that 
the City Council authorize the City to proceed with the expense of $50,000 of the Strategic 
Capital Improvement Reserve to update the plans and prepare the bid specifications for putting 
the project out to bid.  He also recommended authorization of an additional expenditure of up to 
$200,000 to facilitate the plans and bid documents because it will cost more than $50,000 given 
the number of alleys to be improved.  He also recommended placement of the item on the 



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 7 of 9 
 
ROPS and once approved by the DOF, refund the Strategic Capital Improvement Reserve with 
the bond funds for all but the $50,000 that was already authorized by the City Council from the 
Strategic Capital Improvement Reserve. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS expressed concern about using funds from the Strategic Capital 
Improvement Reserve.  He recalled that City Council previously supported funding street and 
alley projects with Gas Tax and Transnet funds.  The Strategic Capital Improvement Reserve 
Fund was to be used as an investment fund for projects such as public/private partnerships that 
will result in increased return to the City.  He noted that while he is just as confident that the 
funds will be returned through the ROPS process, he stated that it would be setting the wrong 
precedence to use the Strategic Capital Improvement Reserve Fund to front-end the costs.  He 
preferred the use of Gas Tax and TransNet funds to fund the project.  
 
CITY MANAGER HALL stated that Gas Tax and TransNet Funds come from SANDAG.  To 
follow the paper trail through another agency would be complicated.  He recommended using 
the money through the loan repayment from the DOF to allow the work to proceed. 
 
City Council discussion ensued regarding City Council’s previous action to allocate $500,000 
towards alley improvements and the source of funding.   
 
MAYOR PRO TEM PATTON stated that it is clear that the funds will be returned to the City and 
noted that a lot of residents will benefit from having alleys.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER SPRIGGS stressed that there are plenty of funds in other reserves.  He 
supported switching the fund source to another fund account and staying true to the principle 
that we need to have a fund source that can generate economic development. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY stated that TransNet and Gas Tax Funds would be taken from 
other street projects.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER BRAGG stated that the funds will be paid back.  She commented that City 
Council has been working on the alley project for a long time and to see it come to fruition is 
exciting.  She questioned why concrete is being considered over asphalt. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR LEVIEN stated that asphalt alleys have a maintenance issue.  He 
recommended use of the resources to install concrete alleys.   
 
CITY MANAGER HALL discussed the benefits of having concrete alleys versus asphalt alleys.  
Staff will look at both products but will deliver the most cost effective method in both initial 
installation and long-term maintenance.  He stated that there is an option to change the funding 
source to the Capital Reserve rather than the Strategic Reserve in order to move the item 
forward.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY stated all of the other alleys have been paid for by property 
owners in the City.  The fact that City Council is considering this item may lead to some 
criticism.  He did state, however, that a policy was established to help determine the priority 
order for which alleys are to be paved, avoiding favoritism.  
 



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 8 of 9 
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY JANNEY, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7492 
AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PROCEED WITH THE NECESSARY PORTIONS OF THE ALLEY 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP PROJECT S14-104) TO PREPARE FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF ALLEY NUMBERS 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 49, 
AND 50.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding funding sources for the project. 
 
MAYOR JANNEY recommended a modification to the motion to use the funds from wherever 
the City Manager deems appropriate to make everyone happy. 
 
COUNCILMEMBER BILBRAY agreed to the modification to the motion and stated that this is an 
investment in our neighborhoods. 
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY JANNEY, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7492 
AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PROCEED WITH THE NECESSARY PORTIONS OF THE ALLEY 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP PROJECT S14-104) TO PREPARE FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF ALLEY NUMBERS 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 49, 
AND 50 AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER USE THE FUNDS FROM WHEREVER 
HE DEEMS APPROPRIATE.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY BRAGG, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. SA-14-42 
CONDITIONALLY AUTHORIZING THE ALLOCATION OF $1,274,584 OF 2010 TAX 
ALLOCATION BOND PROCEEDS FOR THE ALLEY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (CIP 
PROJECT S14-104) SUBJECT TO PLACEMENT OF THE PROJECT AND PROPOSED 
EXPENDITURE OF THE BOND PROCEEDS ON THE ROPS 14-15B AND OBTAINING THE 
REQUIRED APPROVAL BY THE OVERSIGHT BOARD AND CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT 
OF FINANCE FOR THE EXPENDITURE OF THE BOND PROCEEDS TOWARD THE 
PROJECT.  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
ITEMS PULLED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
2.5 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7490 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE TIN FISH RESTAURANT FOR 
COMPENSATION OF LOST EARNINGS DUE TO THE PIER CLOSURE FOR THE 
4TH OF JULY FIREWORKS SHOW.  (1040-10) 

 
CANDY UNGER reported that she has raised $13,233.00, not including t-shirt sales.  She said 
that of the 60 collection cans, there are 35 cans being actively circulated and each can brings in 
approximately $100 per week.  She noted that money can be raised if people walk the cans 
through the neighborhoods.  She also reported that t-shirt sales have netted approximately 
$1,000.00.  There will be a fundraiser at SEA 180 on June 23rd from 5:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 
where 15% of the sales will go towards fireworks. 
 
MOTION BY BILBRAY, SECOND BY SPRIGGS, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7490 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE TIN 
FISH RESTAURANT FOR COMPENSATION OF LOST EARNINGS DUE TO THE PIER 
CLOSURE FOR THE 4TH OF JULY FIREWORKS SHOW.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 



June 4, 2014 
City Council and IB Redevelopment Agency Successor Agency Minutes - Draft 
Page 9 of 9 
 
2.6 ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7489 RATIFYING THE CITY MANAGER’S 

SIGNATURE ON AN AGREEMENT WITH PYRO SPECTACULARS, INC. FOR 
PRODUCTION OF THE 4TH OF JULY FIREWORKS SHOW.  (1040-10) 

 
MOTION BY PATTON, SECOND BY BILBRAY, TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2014-7489 
RATIFYING THE CITY MANAGER’S SIGNATURE ON AN AGREEMENT WITH PYRO 
SPECTACULARS, INC. FOR PRODUCTION OF THE 4TH OF JULY FIREWORKS SHOW.  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
MAYOR JANNEY adjourned the meeting at 8:27 p.m. 
 
         _______________________ 
        James C. Janney, Mayor 
 
_________________  ________ 
Jacqueline M. Hald, MMC 
City Clerk 

















































Signature on file

Signature on file







City of Imperial Beach Staff Report  
MF 1060 Housing Element Implementation  

August 6, 2014  
Page 3 of 3  

 

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Staff Reports\CDD-DIR\2014 Staff Reports\080614 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Amend 
SR.doc 

Attachments:  
 
1. Ordinance No. 2014-1146  

 
 
c: file MF 1060 Housing Element GPA 100060  

Veronica Tam and Associates LLC, 107 S. Fair Oaks Avenue, Suite 212, Pasadena, CA 
91105 Veronica.Tam@vtaplanning.com  

Susan Baldwin, Housing, SANDAG, 401 B Street, Ste. 800, San Diego, CA 92101  
Susan.Baldwin@sandag.org  

Robin Huntley, HPD Analyst, California Department of Housing and Community 
Development, 1800 Third Street, Sacramento, CA 95811-6942 
rhuntley@hcd.ca.gov  

Amanda Sackett, Coastal Program Analyst, California Coastal Commission, 7575 
Metropolitan Drive, Suite 103, San Diego, CA 92108-1735 
Amanda.sackett@coastal.ca.gov   

Gene and Christine Hillger,    
Steve and Donna Simonds,   
Charles and Eva Quisenberry,   

 
 

mailto:Veronica.Tam@vtaplanning.com
mailto:%20Susan.Baldwin@sandag.org
mailto:%20Susan.Baldwin@sandag.org
mailto:rhuntley@hcd.ca.gov
file://Coib-vm02/e/citywide_depts/Community%20Development/Master%20Files/MF%201060%20Housing%20Element%202013-2020/Housing%20Element%20Zoning%20Implementation/071614%20MF%201060%20Housing%20Element%20Zoning%20Amend/Amanda.sackett@coastal.ca.gov


 

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

ATTACHMENT 1 
ORDINANCE NO. 2014-1146  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL 
BEACH AMENDING TITLE 19 (ZONING) OF THE IMPERIAL BEACH 
MUNICIPAL CODE BY IMPLEMENTING PROGRAMS 12 AND 13 OF THE 
2013-2021 (5TH CYCLE) HOUSING ELEMENT.  MF 1060.  

 
WHEREAS, on January 23, 2013, the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach held a 

duly advertised public hearing and adopted the 2013-2021 Housing Element; and  
 
WHEREAS, on July 16, 2014, the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach held a duly 

advertised public hearing to consider the merits of approving or denying amendments to the 
Zoning Ordinance that would implement Programs 11, 12, and 13 of the 2013-2021 (5th Cycle) 
Housing Element; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed implementing zoning amendments 

would be externally consistent with the General Plan/ Local Coastal Plan, specifically the 
Housing Element, pursuant to Government Code Section 65860; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City Of Imperial Beach hereby finds that the 

implementing zoning amendments of the 2013-2021 Housing Element is in substantial 
compliance with the California Housing Element Law (Government Code Section 65580 et seq); 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Final Negative Declaration (SCH # 

2012111006) adopted by the City Council on January 23, 2013 for the Housing Element 
remains adequate in addressing any environmental effects that may result from the 
implementation of the policies and programs, including the proposed zoning amendments, of 
the Housing Element.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IMPERIAL BEACH 

DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:  
 

SECTION 1: That Chapter 19.65 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 

Chapter 19.65. AFFORDABLE HOUSING DENSITY BONUS  
 
19.65.010. Purpose. 

This chapter establishes procedures and requirements to facilitate the development of 
affordable housing that serve moderate income, low income, very low income, and senior 
households within the city.  To encourage the provision of affordable housing, the city shall 
provide to developers who meet the requirements established by this chapter and Government 
Code Section 65915 (Density Bonus Law) a density bonus and the incentives identified in 
Government Code Section 65915.   

 
19.65.020. Definitions. 

As used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings:  

“Affordability” is determined as 30 percent or less of the area median income (AMI) as 
adjusted for assumed household size for moderate income, low income, and very low income 
households as defined by the Health and Safety Code.  

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_010&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_020&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 2 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

“Density bonus” means a density increase over the otherwise maximum allowable 
residential density under the applicable zoning ordinance and land use element of the general 
plan as of the date of application by the developer to the City.  The density bonus shall apply to 
residential developments of five or more units.  The number of housing units to be reserved for 
low or very low income households or qualifying residents does not include the density bonus 
units.  

“Equivalent financial value” means to the cost to developer/property owner based on the 
land cost per dwelling unit.  The land cost per dwelling unit is determined by the difference in the 
value of the land with and without the density bonus.  

"Housing development," as used in this chapter, means a development project for five or 
more residential units.  For the purposes of this chapter, "housing development" also includes a 
subdivision or common interest development, as defined in Section 4100 of the Civil Code, 
approved by the City and consists of residential units or unimproved residential lots and either a 
project to substantially rehabilitate and convert an existing commercial building to residential 
use or the substantial rehabilitation of an existing multifamily dwelling, as defined in subdivision 
(d) of Government Code Section 65863.4, where the result of the rehabilitation would be a net 
increase in available residential units.  For the purpose of calculating a density bonus, the 
residential units shall be on contiguous sites that are the subject of one development 
application, but do not have to be based upon individual subdivision maps or parcels.  The 
density bonus shall be permitted in geographic areas of the housing development other than the 
areas where the units for the lower income households are located.   

"Maximum allowable residential density" means the density allowed under the zoning 
ordinance and land use element of the general plan, or if a range of density is permitted, means 
the maximum allowable density for the specific zoning range and land use element of the 
general plan applicable to the project.  Where the density allowed under the zoning ordinance is 
inconsistent with the density allowed under the land use element of the general plan, the 
general plan density shall prevail.  

“Lower income households” are as currently defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health 
and Safety Code and any subsequent amendments or revisions.  

“Qualifying resident” or "senior citizen" means a person 62 years of age or older, or 55 
years of age or older in a senior citizen housing development as defined in Section 51.3 of the 
Civil Code and any subsequent amendments or revisions.  

“Very low income households” are as currently defined in Section 50105 of the Health 
and Safety Code and any subsequent amendments or revisions. (Ord. 94-888 § 2, 1994; Ord. 
94-884)  

 
19.65.030. Density Bonus Application Process.  

A. Pursuant to and in accordance with Government Code Section 65915, et seq., an 
applicant seeking a density bonus for a housing development shall file the completed 
application with and on a form provided by the Community Development Department. The City 
shall grant: 

1. A density bonus and additional concessions or incentives pursuant to this 
chapter,  

B. In order to qualify for the density bonus, a proposed housing development must 
consist of five or more dwelling units and meet one or more of the following criteria:  

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_030&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 3 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

1. At least ten percent of the total units allowed by the maximum permitted 
density are designated for lower-income households as defined in Section 50079.5 of 
the Health and Safety Code; or  

2. At least five percent of the total units allowed by the maximum permitted 
density are designated for very low-income households as defined in Section 50105 of 
the Health and Safety Code; or  

3. A senior citizen housing development, as defined in Sections 51.3 of the 
Civil Code, or mobilehome park that limits residency based on age requirements for 
housing for older persons pursuant to Section 798.76 or 799.5 of the Civil Code.  

4. Ten percent of the total dwelling units in a common interest development 
as defined in Section 4100 of the Civil Code for persons and families of moderate 
income, as defined in Section 50093 of the Health and Safety Code, provided that all 
units in the development are offered to the public for purchase.   

C. This chapter shall not be construed to supersede or in any way alter or lessen 
the effect or application of the California Coastal Act of 1976 (Division 20 commencing with 
Section 30000 of the Public Resources Code).  In the coastal zone, the density bonus shall be 
calculated based on the otherwise maximum allowable residential density under the applicable 
zoning ordinance and land use element of the general plan as they apply to the project site.  
The otherwise maximum allowable residential density shall mean the maximum potential density 
modified by applying all site-specific environmental development constraints identified within the 
coastal zoning ordinances and land use element certified by the coastal commission.  The 
density bonus shall be applicable to housing developments consisting of five or more units.  

D. In the coastal zone, any housing development approved pursuant to Government 
Code Section 65915 shall be consistent, to the maximum extent feasible, and in a manner most 
protective of coastal resources, with all otherwise applicable certified local coastal program 
policies and development standards.  Approval of development proposed under this section 
shall require a finding that the development, if it had been proposed without the twenty-five 
percent density increase, would have been fully consistent with the policies and development 
standards of the certified local coastal program.  In cases where a density increase is granted 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65915 which results in development inconsistent with 
otherwise applicable certified local coastal program policies and development standards, such 
as height, parking and setback requirements, the relief granted from such standards shall be 
considered an additional incentive under Government Code Section 65915. (Ord. 94-888 § 2, 
1994; Ord. 94-884)   

 
19.65.040. Density bonus agreement. 
 

A. To be eligible for a density bonus, the developer/property owner must sign a 
binding agreement with the City which sets forth the conditions and guidelines to be met in the 
implementation of the density bonus law requirements pursuant to Government Code Sections 
65915.(c) and 65917. The agreement will also establish specific compliance standards and 
remedies available to the City upon failure by the developer/property owner to make units 
accessible to intended residents.  To ensure compliance, the city shall require a security in an 
amount and in a form acceptable to the City Manager, City Attorney, and the Community 
Development Department. (Ord. 94-888 § 2, 1994; Ord. 94-884)  
 

B. The developer/property owner shall agree to, and the City shall ensure, 
continued affordability of all low- and very low income units that qualified the applicant for the 

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_040&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 4 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

award of the density bonus for 30 years or a longer period of time if required by the construction 
or mortgage financing assistance program, mortgage insurance program, or rental subsidy 
program.  Rents for the lower income density bonus units shall be set at an affordable rent as 
defined in Section 50053 of the Health and Safety Code.  Owner-occupied units shall be 
available at an affordable housing cost as defined in Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety 
Code.  
 

C. The developer/property owner shall agree to, and the City shall ensure that, the 
initial occupant of the moderate-income units that are directly related to the receipt of the 
density bonus in the common interest development, as defined in Section 4100 of the Civil 
Code, are persons and families of moderate income, as defined in Section 50093 of the Health 
and Safety Code, and that the units are offered at an affordable housing cost, as that cost is 
defined in Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code.  The local government shall enforce 
an equity sharing agreement, unless it is in conflict with the requirements of another public 
funding source or law.  The following apply to the equity sharing agreement:  
 

1. Upon resale, the seller of the unit shall retain the value of any 
improvements, the down payment, and the seller's proportionate share of appreciation.  
The local government shall recapture any initial subsidy, as defined in subparagraph 2, 
and its proportionate share of appreciation, as defined in subparagraph 3, which amount 
shall be used within five years for any of the purposes described in subdivision (e) of 
Section 33334.2 of the Health and Safety Code that promote home ownership.  

2. The local government's initial subsidy shall be equal to the fair market 
value of the home at the time of initial sale minus the initial sale price to the moderate-
income household, plus the amount of any down payment assistance or mortgage 
assistance.  If upon resale the market value is lower than the initial market value, then 
the value at the time of the resale shall be used as the initial market value  

3. The local government's proportionate share of appreciation shall be equal 
to the ratio of the local government's initial subsidy to the fair market value of the home 
at the time of initial sale.  

 
D.  Where there is a direct financial contribution to a housing development pursuant to 

Government Code Section 65915 through participation in the cost of infrastructure, write-down 
of land costs, or subsidizing the cost of construction, the City shall assure continued availability 
for low- and moderate-income units for 30 years.  When appropriate, the agreement provided 
for in Section 19.65.040 shall specify the mechanisms and procedures necessary to carry out 
this section.  

 
19.65.050. Density bonus calculations.  

A. Low-Income Units.  For housing developments meeting the criteria of Section 
19.65.030.B.1, the density bonus shall be calculated as follows:  
 
Percentage Low-Income Units Percentage Density Bonus Incentives/concessions  

10 20 1 
11 21.5 1 
12 23 1 
13 24.5 1 
14 26 1 
15 27.5 1 

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_050&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 5 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

17 30.5 1 
18 32 1 
19 33.5 1 

20 - 29 35 2 
≥ 30  35 3 

 

B. Very Low-Income Units.  For housing developments meeting the criteria of 
Section 19.65.030.B.2, the density bonus shall be calculated as follows:  
 

Percentage Very Low-Income Units Percentage Density Bonus Incentives/concessions  
5 20 1 
6 22.5 1 
7 25 1 
8 27.5 1 
9 30 1 
10 32.5 2 

11 – 14  35 2 
≥ 15  35 3 

 
C. Senior Housing.  For housing developments meeting the criteria of Section 

19.65.030.B.3, the density bonus shall be 20 percent of the number of senior housing units.  
 

D. Moderate Income Units.  For housing developments meeting the criteria of 
Section 19.65.030.B.4, the density bonus shall be calculated as follows: 
 

Percentage Moderate Income Units Percentage Density Bonus Incentives/concessions  
10 5 1 
11 6 1 
12 7 1 
13 8 1 
14 9 1 
15 10 1 
16 11 1 
17 12 1 
18 13 1 
19 14 1 
20 15 2 
21 16 2 
22 17 2 
23 18 2 
24 19 2 
25 20 2 
26 21 2 
27 22 2 



Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 6 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

28 23 2 
29 24 2 
30 25 3 
31 26 3 
32 27 3 
33 28 3 
34 29 3 
35 30 3 
36 31 3 
37 32 3 
38 33 3 
39 34 3 
40 35 3 

 
E. All density calculations resulting in fractional units shall be rounded up to the next 

whole number.  The granting of a density bonus shall not be interpreted, in and of itself, to 
require a general plan amendment, local coastal plan amendment, zoning change, or other 
discretionary approval.  
 

F. Land donation.  When an applicant for a tentative subdivision map, parcel map, 
or other residential development approval donates land to the City in accordance with the state 
Density Bonus Law, the applicant shall be entitled to a 15-percent increase above the otherwise 
maximum allowable residential density for the entire development, as follows:  
 

Percentage Very Low Income Percentage Density Bonus 
10 15 
11 16 
12 17 
13 18 
14 19 
15 20 
16 21 
17 22 
18 23 
19 24 
20 25 
21 26 
22 27 
23 28 
24 29 
25 30 
26 31 
27 32 
28 33 



Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 7 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

29 34 
30 35 

 
19.65.060. Incentives or Concessions. 
A. The applicant shall receive the following number of incentives or concessions:  

1. One incentive or concession for projects that include at least 10 percent of the 
total units for lower income households, at least 5 percent for very low income households, or at 
least 10 percent for persons and families of moderate income in a common interest 
development.  

2. Two incentives or concessions for projects that include at least 20 percent of the 
total units for lower income households, at least 10 percent for very low income households, or 
at least 20 percent for persons and families of moderate income in a common interest 
development.  

3. Three incentives or concessions for projects that include at least 30 percent of 
the total units for lower income households, at least 15 percent for very low income households, 
or at least 30 percent for persons and families of moderate income in a common interest 
development.   
 
B. Such concession shall be specific to the individual project and may include: 

1. A modification of development standards pertaining to building height, open 
space, lot size requirements, street access, off-street parking, landscaping, fencing or other 
development standards, or off-site improvements; 

2. Reduction of development processing fees, not including impacts fees; 

3. In the coastal zone, any incentives must be consistent to the maximum extent 
feasible, and in a manner most protective of coastal resources, with all otherwise applicable 
certified local coastal program policies and standards. In choosing between incentives, priority 
shall be given to that incentive most protective of coastal resources so as to avoid any 
development within or adjacent to wetlands or other environmentally sensitive areas, or any 
development within or adjacent to geologic hazard areas, or any development which would 
result in any significant adverse impacts on coastal access and recreation.  
C. An applicant for a density bonus pursuant to Section 19.65.030 may submit to the City a 
proposal for the specific incentives or concessions that the applicant requests pursuant to this 
chapter, and may request a meeting with the City.  The City shall grant the concession or 
incentive requested by the applicant unless the City makes a written finding, based upon 
substantial evidence, of any of the following:  

1. The concession or incentive is not required in order to provide for affordable 
housing costs, as defined in Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code, or for rents for the 
targeted units to be set as specified in the density bonus agreement.  

2. The concession or incentive would have a specific adverse impact, as defined in 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 65589.5, upon public health and 
safety or the physical environment or on any real property that is listed in the California Register 
of Historical Resources and for which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or 
avoid the specific adverse impact without rendering the development unaffordable to low- and 
moderate-income households.  

3. The concession or incentive would be contrary to state or federal law.  

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_060&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 8 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

D. The developer and city staff shall negotiate to determine the incentives which will make 
the project economically feasible with minimum deviations from established standards and 
minimal impacts of health, safety and welfare. (Ord. 94-888 § 2, 1994; Ord. 94-884) 

 
19.65.070. Development Standards.  
A. "Development standard" includes a site or construction condition, including, but not 
limited to, a height limitation, a setback requirement, a floor area ratio, an onsite open-space 
requirement, or a parking ratio that applies to a residential development pursuant to any 
ordinance, general plan element, specific plan, charter, or other local condition, law, policy, 
resolution, or regulation.   
 
B. The City may not apply any development standard that will have the effect of physically 
precluding the construction of a development meeting the criteria of Section 19.65.030.B at the 
densities or with the concessions or incentives permitted by this chapter.  An applicant may 
submit to the City a proposal for the waiver or reduction of development standards that will have 
the effect of physically precluding the construction of a development meeting the criteria of 
Section 19.65.030.B at the densities or with the concessions or incentives permitted under this 
chapter, and may request a meeting with the City.  
 
C. The City is not required to waive or reduce development standards if the waiver or 
reduction would have a specific, adverse impact, as defined in paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) 
of Government Code Section 65589.5, upon health, safety, or the physical environment, and for 
which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific adverse impact.  
The City is not required to waive or reduce development standards if such waiver or reduction 
would have an adverse impact on any real property that is listed in the California Register of 
Historical Resources, or to grant any waiver or reduction that would be contrary to state or 
federal law.  
 
D.  A proposal for the waiver or reduction of development standards pursuant to this section 
shall neither reduce nor increase the number of incentives or concessions to which the applicant 
is entitled pursuant to Section 19.65.060.  
 
E. Upon the request of the developer, the City shall not require a vehicular parking ratio, 
inclusive of disabled and guest parking, of a development meeting the criteria of Section 
19.65.030.B that exceeds the following ratios:  
 

1. Zero to one bedroom: one onsite parking space.  
2. Two to three bedrooms: two onsite parking spaces.  
3. Four and more bedrooms: two and one-half parking spaces.  

 
F. If the total number of parking spaces required for a development is other than a whole 
number, the number shall be rounded up to the next whole number.  For purposes of this 
section, a development may provide "onsite parking" through tandem parking or uncovered 
parking, but not through on-street parking.  
 
G. This subdivision shall apply to a development that meets the requirements of Section 
19.65.030.B but only at the request of the applicant.  An applicant may request parking 
incentives or concessions beyond those provided in this section. 
 
19.65.080. Child care facility. 

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_070&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_070&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 9 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

 
A. When an applicant proposes to construct a housing development that conforms to the 
requirements of Section 19.65.030.B and includes a child care facility that will be located on the 
premises of, as part of, or adjacent to, the project, the City shall grant either of the following:  

1. An additional density bonus that is an amount of square feet of residential space 
that is equal to or greater than the amount of square feet in the child care facility.  

2. An additional concession or incentive that contributes significantly to the 
economic feasibility of the construction of the child care facility. 

B. The City shall require, as a condition of approving the housing development, that the 
following occur:  

1.  The child care facility shall remain in operation for a period of time that is as long 
as or longer than the period of time during which the density bonus units are required to remain 
affordable pursuant to subdivision (c). 

2.  Of the children who attend the child care facility, the children of very low income 
households, lower income households, or families of moderate income shall equal a percentage 
that is equal to or greater than the percentage of dwelling units that are required for very low 
income households, lower income households, or families of moderate income pursuant to 
subdivision (b).  

C.  Notwithstanding any requirement of this subdivision, a city, county, or city and county 
shall not be required to provide a density bonus or concession for a child care facility if it finds, 
based upon substantial evidence, that the community has adequate child care facilities. 

D.  "Child care facility," as used in this section, means a facility installed, operated, and 
maintained for the nonresidential care of children as defined under applicable state licensing 
requirements for the facility other than a family day care home, but including and not limited to, 
infant centers, preschools, extended day care facilities, and school age child care centers.  

E. "Density bonus" as used in this section means a floor area ratio bonus over the 
otherwise maximum allowable density permitted under the applicable zoning ordinance and land 
use elements of the general plan of the City of:  

1.  A maximum of five square feet of floor area for each one square foot of floor 
area contained in the child care facility for existing structures. 

2.  A maximum of 10 square feet of floor area for each one square foot of floor area 
contained in the child care facility for new structures.  

3. For purposes of calculating the density bonus under this section, both indoor and 
outdoor square footage requirements for the child care facility as set forth in applicable state 
child care licensing requirements shall be included in the floor area of the child care facility. 

F. "Developer" means the owner or other person, including a lessee, having the right under 
the applicable zoning ordinance of the City to make an application for development approvals 
for the development or redevelopment of a commercial project. 

G "Floor area" means as to a commercial project, the floor area as calculated under the 
applicable zoning ordinance of the City and as to a child care facility, the total area contained 
within the exterior walls of the facility and all outdoor areas devoted to the use of the facility in 
accordance with applicable state child care licensing requirements.  

H. The City may establish a procedure by ordinance to grant a developer of a commercial 
project, containing at least 50,000 square feet of floor area, a density bonus when that 



Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 10 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

developer has set aside at least 2,000 square feet of floor area and 3,000 outdoor square feet to 
be used for a child care facility.  The granting of a bonus shall not preclude the City from 
imposing necessary conditions on the project or on the additional square footage.  Projects 
constructed under this section shall conform to height, setback, lot coverage, architectural 
review, site plan review, fees, charges, and other health, safety, and zoning requirements 
generally applicable to construction in the zone in which the property is located.  A consortium 
with more than one developer may be permitted to achieve the threshold amount for the 
available density bonus with each developer's density bonus equal to the percentage 
participation of the developer.  This facility may be located on the project site or may be located 
offsite as agreed upon by the developer and the City.  If the child care facility is not located on 
the site of the project, the City shall determine whether the location of the child care facility is 
appropriate and whether it conforms with the intent of this section.  The child care facility shall 
be of a size to comply with all state licensing requirements in order to accommodate at least 40 
children.  

I. The developer may operate the child care facility itself or may contract with a licensed 
child care provider to operate the facility. In all cases, the developer shall show ongoing 
coordination with a local child care resource and referral network or local governmental child 
care coordinator in order to qualify for the density bonus.  

J. If the developer uses space allocated for child care facility purposes, in accordance with 
Section 19.65.030.B, for purposes other than for a child care facility, an assessment based on 
the square footage of the project may be levied and collected by the City. The assessment shall 
be consistent with the market value of the space.  If the developer fails to have the space 
allocated for the child care facility within three years, from the date upon which the first 
temporary certificate of occupancy is granted, an assessment based on the square footage of 
the project may be levied and collected by the City in accordance with procedures to be 
developed by the City.  The assessment shall be consistent with the market value of the space.  
A penalty levied against a consortium of developers shall be charged to each developer in an 
amount equal to the developer's percentage square feet participation.  Funds collected pursuant 
to this subdivision shall be deposited by the City into a special account to be used for child care 
services or child care facilities. 

K.  Once the child care facility has been established, prior to the closure, change in use, or 
reduction in the physical size of, the facility, the City shall be required to make a finding that the 
need for child care is no longer present, or is not present to the same degree as it was at the 
time the facility was established.  
 
19.65.090. Condominium conversions. 
 
A. When an applicant for approval to convert apartments to a condominium project agrees 
to provide at least 33 percent of the total units of the proposed condominium project to persons 
and families of low or moderate income as defined in Section 50093 of the Health and Safety 
Code, or 15 percent of the total units of the proposed condominium project to lower income 
households as defined in Section 50079.5 of the Health and Safety Code, and agrees to pay for 
the reasonably necessary administrative costs incurred by the City pursuant to this section, the 
City shall either (1) grant a density bonus or (2) provide other incentives of equivalent financial 
value.  The City may place such reasonable conditions on the granting of a density bonus or 
other incentives of equivalent financial value as it finds appropriate, including, but not limited to, 
conditions which assure continued affordability of units to subsequent purchasers who are 
persons and families of low and moderate income or lower income households.  

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_070&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 11 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

B. For purposes of this section, "density bonus" means an increase in units of 25 percent 
over the number of apartments, to be provided within the existing structure or structures 
proposed for conversion.  

C. For purposes of this section, "other incentives of equivalent financial value" shall not be 
construed to require the City to provide cash transfer payments or other monetary 
compensation but may include the reduction or waiver of requirements which the City might 
otherwise apply as conditions of conversion approval.  

D. An applicant for approval to convert apartments to a condominium project may submit to 
the City a preliminary proposal pursuant to this section prior to the submittal of any formal 
requests for subdivision map approvals.  The City shall, within 90 days of receipt of a written 
proposal, notify the applicant in writing of the manner in which it will comply with this section.  
The City shall establish procedures for carrying out this section, which shall include legislative 
body approval of the means of compliance with this section.  

E. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the City to approve a proposal to 
convert apartments to condominiums.  

F.  An applicant shall be ineligible for a density bonus or other incentives under this section 
if the apartments proposed for conversion constitute a housing development for which a density 
bonus or other incentives were provided under Government Code Section 65915.  
 
19.65.100. Other Affordable Housing Incentives or Concessions. 
 
Applications for affordable housing projects not qualifying for or requesting a density bonus may 
be considered for incentives or concessions at the discretion of the City Council.  The City may 
require an affordable housing agreement to ensure the availability of the targeted units for low 
and moderate income households for a period of 30 years and may execute such other 
provisions as may be necessary to implement the agreement.   
 

SECTION 2:  That Section 19.68.030 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 
19.68.030. Manufactured homes in Residential zones.  

 
A. It is the purpose of this section to allow the placement of manufactured homes in 

the R-1-6000, R-1-3800, R-3000-D, R-3000, R-2000, and R-1500 zones.  

B. Eligibility. A manufactured home shall not be eligible:  

1. If more than ten years have elapsed between the date of manufacture 
and the date of the application for a permit. 

2. If the home is not certified under the National Manufactured Housing 
Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. Section 5401, 
et seq.) 

3. If it has been altered in violation of applicable code.  

C. Criteria. The manufactured home shall:  

1. Be occupied only as a single-family residential use;  

2. Be subject to all provisions of the Zoning Ordinance applicable to 
residential structures;  

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_65-19_65_070&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 12 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

3. Be attached to a permanent foundation system in compliance with all 
applicable building regulations;  

4. Have a roof overhang of twelve inches or more. (Ord. 94-884)  
 

SECTION 3:  That Chapter 19.04 is hereby amended to include the following definitions:  
 
19.04.318. Employee housing.  
 
Employee housing providing accommodations for six or fewer employees shall be deemed a 
single-family structure with a residential land use designation pursuant to Health and Safety 
Code Section 17021.5.(b)  
 
19.04.761. Transitional housing .  
 
"Transitional housing" and "transitional housing development" means buildings configured as 
rental housing developments, but operated under program requirements that call for the 
termination of assistance and recirculation of the assisted unit to another eligible program 
recipient at some predetermined future point in time, which shall be no less than six months 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 50801(i).  Pursuant to Government Code Section 
65583(a)(5), transitional housing and supportive housing shall be considered a residential use 
of property, and shall be subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential 
dwellings of the same type in the same zone.  
 
19.04.747. Supportive housing.  
 
"Supportive housing" means housing with no limit on length of stay, that is occupied by the 
target population, and that is linked to onsite or offsite services that assist the supportive 
housing resident in retaining the housing, improving his or her health status, and maximizing his 
or her ability to live and, when possible, work in the community pursuant to Health and Safety 
Code Section 50675.14(a)(B)(2).  Pursuant to Government Code Section 65583(a)(5), 
transitional housing and supportive housing shall be considered a residential use of property, 
and shall be subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the 
same type in the same zone.   
 
19.04.702. Single-room occupancy unit.  
 
Single room occupancy" unit or an SRO, means a room used for sleeping purposes that: (1) is 
occupied as a primary residence, (2) lacks, in the unit itself, either or both a kitchen or 
bathroom, and (3) is subject to state landlord-tenant law pursuant to chapter 2 (commencing 
with section 1940) of Title 5 of part 4 of division 3 of the Civil Code.  
 

SECTION 4:  That Section 19.67.010 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 
19.67.010. Definition.  
 “Senior citizen housing development” means a residential development developed, 
substantially rehabilitated, or substantially renovated for, senior citizens that has at least 35 
dwelling units.  Any senior citizen housing development which is required to obtain a public 
report under Section 11010 of the Business and Professions Code and which submits its 
application for a public report after July 1, 2001, shall be required to have been issued a public 
report as a senior citizen housing development under Section 11010.05 of the Business and 

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_04-19_04_760&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_04-19_04_745&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_04-19_04_700&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 13 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

Professions Code.  No housing development constructed prior to January 1, 1985, shall fail to 
qualify as a senior citizen housing development because it was not originally developed or put 
to use for occupancy by senior citizens.  
 

SECTION 5:  That Section 19.23.010. is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 
19.23.010. Land use table. 
 
 C/MU-1 C/MU-2 C/MU-3 Notes  
Residential and Similar Uses     
Single-room occupancy units C  N  N   
 

SECTION 6:  That Section 19.02.070. is hereby added to read as follows:  
 
19.02.070. Reasonable Accommodation for Persons with Disabilities. 
 
A. Reasonable accommodation in the land use and zoning context means providing 

individuals with disabilities or developers of housing for people with disabilities, flexibility 
in the application of land use and zoning and building regulations, policies, practices and 
procedures, or even waiving certain requirements, when it is necessary to eliminate 
barriers to housing opportunities.   

B. An individual with a disability is someone who has a physical or mental impairment that 
limits one or more major life activities; anyone who is regarded as having such 
impairment; or anyone with a record of such impairment.  

C. A request for reasonable accommodation may be made by any individual with a 
disability, his or her representative, or a developer or provider of housing for individuals 
with disabilities, when the application of a land use, zoning or building regulation, policy, 
practice or procedure acts as a barrier to fair housing opportunities.  

D. In order to make housing available to an individual with a disability, any eligible person 
may request a reasonable accommodation in land use, zoning and building regulations, 
policies, practices and procedures.  

E. Requests for reasonable accommodation shall be in writing and provide the following 
information:  
(1) Name and address of the individual(s) requesting reasonable accommodation;  
(2) Name and address of the property owner(s); 
(3) Address of the property for which accommodation is requested; 
(4) Description of the requested accommodation and the regulation(s), policy or 
procedure for which accommodation is sought; and (5) Reason that the requested 
accommodation may be necessary for the individual(s) with the disability to use and 
enjoy the dwelling. 

F. Any information identified by an applicant as confidential shall be retained in a manner 
so as to respect the privacy rights of the applicant and shall not be made available for 
public inspection.  

G. A request for reasonable accommodation in regulations, policies, practices and 
procedures may be filed at any time that the accommodation may be necessary to 
ensure equal access to housing.  A reasonable accommodation does not affect an 
individual’s obligations to comply with other applicable regulations not at issue in the 
requested accommodation.  

http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_23-19_23_010&frames=on
http://qcode.us/codes/imperialbeach/view.php?topic=19-19_02-19_02_060&frames=on


Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 14 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

H. If an individual needs assistance in making the request for reasonable accommodation, 
the City will provide assistance to ensure that the process is accessible.  

I. Requests for reasonable accommodation shall be reviewed by the Community 
Development Director.  

J. The Community Development Director shall issue a written decision on a request for 
reasonable accommodation within thirty (30) days of the date of the application and may 
either grant, grant with modifications, or deny a request for reasonable accommodation 
in accordance with the required findings set forth in paragraph L.  

K. If necessary to reach a determination on the request for reasonable accommodation, the 
Community Development Director may request further information from the applicant 
consistent with fair housing laws, specifying in detail the information that is required. In 
the event that a request for additional information is made, the thirty (30) day period to 
issue a decision is stayed until the applicant responds to the request. 

L. The written decision to grant, grant with modifications, or deny a request for reasonable 
accommodation shall be consistent with fair housing laws and based on the following 
factors:  

(1) Whether the housing, which is the subject of the request for reasonable 
accommodation, will be used by an individual with disabilities protected under fair 
housing laws;  

(2) Whether the requested accommodation is necessary to make housing available to an 
individual with disabilities protected under the fair housing laws;  

(3) Whether the requested accommodation would impose an undue financial or 
administrative burden on the jurisdiction and;  

(4) Whether the requested accommodation would require a fundamental alteration in the 
nature of the jurisdiction’s land use and zoning or building program.  

M. The written decision on the request for reasonable accommodation shall explain in detail 
the basis of the decision, including the Community Development Director’s findings on 
the criteria set forth in paragraph L. All written decisions shall give notice of the 
applicant’s right to appeal and to request reasonable accommodation in the appeals 
process as set forth below.  The notice of decision shall be sent to the applicant by 
certified mail.  

N. The written decision of the Community Development Director shall be final unless an 
applicant appeals it to the City Council.  

O. If the Community Development Director fails to render a written decision on the request 
for reasonable accommodation within the thirty (30) day time period allotted by 
paragraph J, the request shall be deemed granted.  

P. While a request for reasonable accommodation is pending, all laws and regulations 
otherwise applicable to the property that is the subject of the request shall remain in full 
force and effect.  

Q. Within thirty (30) days of the date of the Community Development Director’s written 
decision, an applicant may appeal an adverse decision.  Appeals from the adverse 
decision shall be made in writing.  

R. If an individual needs assistance in filing an appeal on an adverse decision, the City will 
provide assistance to ensure that the appeals process is accessible.  



Ordinance No. 2014-1146  
Page 15 of 15  

S:\CITY COUNCIL\Ordinances - DRAFTS\2014-1146 MF 1060 Housing Element Zoning Implementation Ord.doc 

S. All appeals shall contain a statement of the grounds for the appeal.  Any information 
identified by an applicant as confidential shall be retained in a manner so as to respect 
the privacy rights of the applicant and shall not be made available for public inspection.  

T. Nothing in this procedure shall preclude an aggrieved individual from seeking any other 
state or federal remedy available.  

 
SECTION 7:  That this ordinance shall only become effective upon its certification by the 

California Coastal Commission.  
 
Appeal Process under the California Code of Civil Procedure (CCP): The time within which 
judicial review of a City Council decision must be sought is governed by Section 1094.6 of the 
CCP.  A right to appeal a City Council decision is governed by CCP Section 1094.5 and Chapter 
1.18 of the Imperial Beach Municipal Code. 
 
PROTEST PROVISION:  The 90-day period in which any party may file a protest, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 66020, of the fees, dedications or exactions imposed on this 
development project begins on the date of the final decision.  
 

INTRODUCED AND FIRST READ at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Imperial Beach, California, on the 16th day of July, 2014; and THEREAFTER ADOPTED at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Imperial Beach, California, on the 6th day of 
August, 2014, by the following vote:  

 AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 

    
JAMES C. JANNEY, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
      
JACQUELINE M. HALD, MMC 
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
JENNIFER M. LYON  
CITY ATTORNEY 

  

  

  





































AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION
San Diego County Regional Airport Authority

Naval Outlying 
Landing Field 
Imperial Beach
AIRPORT LAND USE 
COMPATIBILITY PLAN

JULY 2014
DR AFT

Landing Fie
Imperial B
AIRPORT L

OMPAT

JULY 20
R AF

Im
AIR

jnakagawa
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1



Airport Land Use Compatibility 
Plan for 
Naval Outlying Landing Field 
Imperial Beach 

Volume 1 

PREPARED FOR:  

San Diego County Regional Airport Authority 

July 2014 
DRAFT 

PREPARED BY :  

RICONDO & ASSOCIATES, INC. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

i 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Table of Contents – Volume 1 

CHAPTER 1 Implementation ............................................................................................. 1-1 

1.1 Purpose and Contents of the Plan.................................................................................... 1-1 

1.2 Effective Date and Amendment ........................................................................................ 1-2 

1.2.1 Effective Date ............................................................................................................ 1-2 

1.2.2 Amendment of this ALUCP ................................................................................... 1-2 

1.3 State Requirements and Guidance ................................................................................... 1-3 

1.3.1 State ALUC Statute .................................................................................................. 1-3 

1.3.2 California Airport Land Use Planning Guidelines .......................................... 1-4 

1.4 Geographic Scope: the Airport Influence Area ............................................................. 1-4 

1.4.1 Real Estate Disclosure ............................................................................................ 1-7 

1.5 Local Agencies and Stakeholders Subject to this ALUCP ......................................... 1-7 

1.6 Existing Land Uses ................................................................................................................. 1-8 

1.6.1 Existing Incompatible Land Uses ........................................................................ 1-9 

1.7 Single-Family Residence Development Right ............................................................. 1-10 

1.8 Land Use Plans, Regulations and Projects in Progress at Time of ALUCP 
Adoption ................................................................................................................................. 1-11 

1.9 ALUC Review Process before Local Agency Implementation ................................ 1-11 

1.9.1 Review Area 1.......................................................................................................... 1-12 

1.9.2 Review Area 2.......................................................................................................... 1-12 

1.9.3 Consistency Determination Review Process ................................................. 1-15 

1.10 Local Agency Implementation ......................................................................................... 1-16 

1.10.1 Local Agency Requirements and Responsibilities ....................................... 1-16 

1.10.2 Establishing Consistency of Local Agency Land Use Plans and 
Regulations .............................................................................................................. 1-19 

1.11 ALUC Review after Local Agency Implementation .................................................... 1-20 

1.11.1 Review of Land Use Plans and Regulations................................................... 1-20 

1.11.2 Review of Land Use Projects .............................................................................. 1-20 

1.11.3 Voluntary Review of Land Use Projects .......................................................... 1-20 

1.11.4 Consistency Determination Review Process ................................................. 1-25 
  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ii 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Table of Contents – Volume 1 (continued)  
 

1.12 ALUC Review of Proposed Airport Plans and Projects ............................................. 1-25 

1.12.1 Airport Plans and Projects .................................................................................. 1-25 

1.12.2 ALUC Actions on Airport Plans .......................................................................... 1-25 

1.12.3 Consistency Determination Result ................................................................... 1-25 

1.12.4 Limit of ALUC Authority Over Airport ............................................................. 1-25 

CHAPTER 2 Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards ................................................ 2-1 

CHAPTER 3 Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards ............................................... 3-1 

3.1 Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards ................................................................. 3-2 

3.2 Conditionally Compatible Land Uses............................................................................... 3-9 

3.3 Supplemental Safety Compatibility Policies ................................................................ 3-10 

CHAPTER 4 Airspace Protection Policies and Standards ................................................ 4-1 

4.1 FAA Notification of Proposed Construction or Alteration ........................................ 4-5 

4.2 Hazards ...................................................................................................................................... 4-9 

4.3 Compatibility of Structures and Objects ........................................................................ 4-9 

4.4 Standards for the Protection of Flight Safety ............................................................. 4-10 

CHAPTER 5 Overflight Compatibility Policies ................................................................. 5-1 
  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

iii 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

List of Tables 
Table 2-1 Noise Compatibility Standards .......................................................................................... 2-5 
Table 3-1 Safety Compatibility Standards ......................................................................................... 3-5 
Table 3-2 Examples ................................................................................................................................. 3-12  

List of Exhibits 
Exhibit 1-1 Airport Influence Area .......................................................................................................... 1-5 
Exhibit 1-2 ALUC Review Before Local Agency Implementation ................................................ 1-13 
Exhibit 1-3 Consistency Determination Review Process ................................................................ 1-17 
Exhibit 1-4 ALUC Review After Local Agency Implementation – Land Use Plans and 

Regulations ............................................................................................................................ 1-21 
Exhibit 1-5 ALUC Review After Local Agency Implementation – Land Use Projects ............ 1-23 
Exhibit 2-1 Noise Contour Map ............................................................................................................... 2-3 
Exhibit 3-1 Safety Compatibility Zones ................................................................................................. 3-3 
Exhibit 4-1 Airspace Protection Boundary ........................................................................................... 4-3 
Exhibit 4-2 Notice of Federal Requirement ......................................................................................... 4-7 
Exhibit 5-1 Overflight Area Boundary .................................................................................................... 5-3   



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

iv 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 



AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION 
San Diego County

 

1-1 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

CHAPTER 1  

Implementation 

This Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for Naval Outlying 
Landing Field Imperial Beach (NOLF IB) is the fundamental tool used by the 
San Diego County Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC) to promote airport 
land use compatibility in the vicinity of the airfield.   

This ALUCP was prepared by the San Diego County Regional Airport 
Authority (SDCRAA), acting in its capacity as the San Diego County ALUC.   

1.1 Purpose and Contents of the Plan 
Consistent with State law, the purpose of this ALUCP is to promote 
compatibility between NOLF IB and surrounding future land uses to: 

� Provide for the orderly development of NOLF IB and the area 
surrounding the facility 

� Protect public health, safety and welfare in areas around NOLF IB1   

As required by State law,2 this ALUCP is consistent with the safety and noise 
standards in the Air Installations Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update 
prepared by the United States Department of Defense (DOD), Naval 
Facilities Command Southwest (NAVFAC SW) for NOLF IB.3  The primary 
goal of the DOD’s AICUZ Program is to protect the health, safety, and 
welfare of those living on and near a military airfield while preserving the 
operational capability of the airfield.4 

This ALUCP provides airport land use compatibility policies and standards 
related to four airport-related factors: noise, safety, airspace protection and 
overflight.  The goals of these land use compatibility policies and standards 
are as follows.   

 

 
1 California Public Utilities Code §21675(a). 
2  California Public Utilities Code §21675(b). 
3  The Onyx Group, Air Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update for Naval Air Station North Island and 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach, California, prepared for NAVFAC-SW, 2011.  
4  The Onyx Group, Air Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update for Naval Air Station North Island and 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach, California, prepared for NAVFAC-SW, 2011, ES-1. 



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-2 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Compatibility Factor Goals 

Noise Ensures that new development within the noise contours is compatible with 
aircraft noise by: 

� Limiting new noise-sensitive development within the noise 
compatibility boundary 

� Ensuring that any new noise-sensitive development includes sound 
attenuation 

Safety Protects the public health, safety, and welfare by: 
� Prohibiting certain sensitive land uses within the safety zones 
� Limiting the number of people in areas subject to the highest risk 

of aircraft accidents   

Airspace Protection Ensures that new development is consistent with: 
� Assuring flight safety by limiting the height of new structures and 

objects 
� Preserving the long-term operational capability of NOLF IB 

Overflight Ensures that prospective buyers of new housing within areas subject to 
aircraft overflights are informed about the potential effects of overflights by: 

� Promoting compliance with the state’s real estate disclosure law 
� Ensuring that sellers (and their agents) of new residential projects 

provide notice of the presence of aircraft overflight to prospective 
buyers 

 

1.2 Effective Date and Amendment 

1.2.1 Effective Date 
This ALUCP becomes effective on the date of its adoption by the ALUC.  If any portion of this 
ALUCP is invalidated by court action, other portions of this ALUCP remain unaffected and in 
full force.   

1.2.2 Amendment of this ALUCP 
Amendment of this ALUCP may be made once per calendar year, as provided by law.5  ALUCP 
amendments may address any issue deemed appropriate by the ALUC.  In addition, the ALUC 
must amend the ALUCP as needed to reflect updates and revisions to the AICUZ.  

 

 

5 California Public Utilities Code §21675(a). 



Implementation 
CHAPTER 1 

1-3 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

1.3 State Requirements and Guidance 

1.3.1 State ALUC Statute 
State law requires the San Diego County ALUC to prepare ALUCPs for all public-use and 
military airports in the County.6  The Legislature assigned the ALUC function in San Diego 
County to SDCRAA.7   

State law requires the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to provide guidance 
to ALUCs in preparing ALUCPs.  The Caltrans Division of Aeronautics publishes the California 
Airport Land Use Planning Handbook (the Handbook) to fulfill this responsibility.  State law 
requires ALUCs to be guided by the information in the Handbook when preparing ALUCPs.8  
ALUCs have a degree of flexibility and discretion to make planning decisions they consider 
appropriate for the airports within their jurisdiction. 

State law requires ALUCPs to be consistent with the safety and noise standards in the AICUZ 
for military airports.9  State law also includes requirements for ALUC review of land use plans 
and regulations and other land use projects.10  In addition, the ALUC should review revisions 
to the AICUZ to determine whether amendments to the ALUCP are required. 

After the ALUC adopts an ALUCP, local agencies with jurisdiction within the NOLF IB Airport 
Influence Area (AIA), defined in Section 1.4, must either amend their land use plans and 
regulations to be consistent with the ALUCP or overrule the ALUCP.11  

A local agency can overrule the ALUCP (or any part of the ALUCP) with a two-thirds majority 
vote of its governing body.  The overrule resolution must include findings describing how the 
local agency’s current land use plans and regulations achieve the objectives of the State ALUC 
statute.12  

In addition to agencies with land use regulatory authority (such as cities and counties), special 
districts, community college districts and school districts are also subject to the requirements 
of the State ALUC statute.13   

 

  

6 California Public Utilities Code §21675. 
7 California Public Utilities Code §21670.3. 
8 California Public Utilities Code §21674.7. 
9  California Public Utilities Code §21675(b). 
10 California Public Utilities Code §§21675.2, 21676, 21676.5. 
11 California Public Utilities Code §§21675.1(d), 21676, 21676.5. 
12 California Public Utilities Code §§21676 and 21676.5. 
13 California Public Utilities Code §21670(f). 



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-4 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

What are Land Use Plans and Regulations? What are Land Use Projects? 

Land use plans and regulations include any general 
plan, community plan, specific plan, precise plan, 
zoning ordinance, rezone, building regulation or 
any amendments to these policy and regulatory 
documents. Land use plans and regulations also 
include any school district, community college 
district or special district master plans or 
amendments to master plans. 

A land use project is a proposed development 
that requires a ministerial or discretionary permit 
or approval from a local agency or that is 
sponsored by a local agency and involves any of 
the following: 

� Construction of a new building 
� Enlargement of the floor area of an 

existing building 
� The subdivision of land 
� A change of use within an existing 

structure (land uses are defined in 
Appendix A of this ALUCP) 

� An increase in the height of a structure 
or object 

When a land use project includes a land use plan 
amendment or rezone, it is reviewed as a land 
use plan and regulation. 

1.3.2 California Airport Land Use Planning Guidelines 
The latest edition of the Handbook was released in October 2011.14  The Handbook provides 
guidance on the delineation of airport compatibility factor boundaries, the policies that should 
apply within those areas, and the administration of ALUCPs.  The guidance in the Handbook is 
intended to serve as the starting point for compatibility planning around individual airports.15  
In addition to reflecting the updated AICUZ for NOLF IB, the policies and maps in this ALUCP 
take into account the guidance provided by the current edition of the Handbook. 

1.4 Geographic Scope: the Airport Influence Area 
The AIA defines the boundary where this ALUCP applies.  The AIA is “the area in which current 
and projected future airport-related noise, safety, airspace protection, or overflight 
factors/layers may significantly affect land use or necessitate restrictions on land use.”16 

Within the AIA, various boundaries applying to each of the four compatibility factors are 
defined.  The AIA is divided into Review Areas 1 and 2, as depicted in Exhibit 1-1.  The 
differences in impacts within these two areas require different policies and review procedures.   
 
 

 
 
 

14  California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook, October 2011. 
15  California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook, October 2011, p. 3-16. 3-20, 

4-12, 4-15, 4-16, 4-32, 4-40. 
16 California Business and Professions Code 11010(b)(13)(B). 



NOLF
Imperial Beach

P a c i f i c  O c e a n

BEYER BLVD

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

 S
T

SA
TU

R
N

 B
LV

D

CORONADO AV

§̈¦5

UV905

§̈¦805

D
AI

R
Y 

M
A

R
T 

R
D

MAIN ST

BR
O

AD
W

AY

ORANGE AV

PALOMAR STNAPLES ST

H
ILLTO

P D
R

De SOL BLVD

PICADOR BLVD

UV75

PALM AV

IMPERIAL BEACH BLVD

Coronado

M E X I C OU N I T E D  S T A T E S  O F  A M E R I C A

MONUMENT RD

SUNSET AV

LEON AV

GROVE AV

11
TH

 S
T

9T
H

 S
T

AL
LE

Y

Chula Vista

San Diego

Imperial Beach

S a n  D i e g o
B a y

National City

Exhibit 1-1

Airport Influence Area

Note:        Airfield elevation is 24 feet above mean sea level (MSL)

Sources:  San Diego Geographic Information Source (SanGIS),
                2008 and 2011 (municipal boundaries, roads, rivers and
                highways); Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Air
                Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update for 
                Naval Air Station North Island and Naval Outlying Field
                Imperial Beach, California, 2011, (airport property
                boundary, runways, airfield); Ricondo & Associates, Inc.,
                2013 (airport influence area).

Prepared by:  Ricondo & Associates, Inc., March 2014.

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Land Use Compatibility Plan
Preliminary Draft

Implementation
CHAPTER 1

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT contain
geographic information copyrighted by SanGIS.
All Rights Reserved.

north

3,600 ft.0

Airport Influence Area (AIA)

Review Area 2: the combination of the airspace protection
and overflight boundaries beyond Review Area 1.

Airport Influence Area: the AIA is the area within which
real estate disclosure is required.

9

8

27
26

Review Area 1: the combination of the 60 dB CNEL noise 
contour and the outer boundary of all safety zones. 

LEGEND

Major Roads

Highways

Water

Municipal Boundaries

High Terrain Area:  Low Overflights

Airport Property Boundary

DRAFT

1-5



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-6 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 



Implementation 
CHAPTER 1 

1-7 

 Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

� Review Area 1 is defined by the combination of the 60 dB CNEL noise contour and 
the outer boundary of all safety zones.  All ALUCP policies and standards apply within 
Review Area 1.  

� Review Area 2 is defined by the combination of the airspace protection and overflight 
boundaries beyond Review Area 1.  Only airspace protection and overflight policies 
and standards apply within Review Area 2. 

1.4.1 Real Estate Disclosure 
Sellers of property and their agents are required by State law to disclose to prospective buyers 
of new and existing residential properties when such property is located within the AIA,  as 
shown on Exhibit 1-1.17  The disclosure provisions of State law are deemed mandatory for any 
new dwelling unit and shall continue in effect as ALUC policy even if the State law is revised or 
rescinded. 

1.5 Local Agencies and Stakeholders Subject to this 
ALUCP 

This ALUCP applies to all local agencies within the AIA.  In this ALUCP, the term “local agency” 
includes the cities of Chula Vista, Coronado, Imperial Beach and San Diego in addition to all 
school, community college and special districts within the AIA. This ALUCP does not apply to 
any property owned by the United States government or any Native American tribe or located 
within Mexico. 

Those affected most directly by the ALUCP include three groups of stakeholders – the ALUC, 
local agencies and project sponsors. The following table briefly describes these stakeholders 
and their roles in using or implementing the ALUCP. 

  

17  Business and Professions Code § 11010(a) and (b)(13); Civil Code §§1102.6, 1103.4 and 1353; Code of Civil Procedure §731a.  



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-8 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 ALUC Local Agencies Project Sponsors 

Stakeholders The SDCRAA Board 
serves as the ALUC for 
San Diego County.   

In this ALUCP, the term 
“local agency” means any 
municipality with land use 
regulatory and permitting 
authority within the AIA.  It 
also includes school districts, 
community college districts 
and special districts with the 
authority to build and 
operate public buildings and 
facilities.   

In this ALUCP, the term 
“project sponsor” refers to 
any person or entity having 
a legal interest in a 
property, including a local 
agency, landowner or 
nonresidential tenant, who 
submits an application to a 
local agency for review of a 
project proposed on such 
property. 

How they use this 
ALUCP 

This ALUCP is used by 
the ALUC and its staff 
to fulfill its mandate 
to promote airport 
land use compatibility 
in the environs of 
NOLF IB.   

This ALUCP provides 
compatibility policies and 
standards that local agencies 
must incorporate into their 
land use plans and 
regulations.18 

Project sponsors must 
comply with the 
compatibility policies and 
standards of this ALUCP in 
designing and building 
projects. 

1.6 Existing Land Uses 
Under State law, an ALUC has no authority over existing land use.19  An exception is for 
existing incompatible land uses that are proposed to be intensified, as described in Section 
1.6.1.  

A land use project will be considered an existing land use when a “vested right” is obtained in 
any of the following ways: 

� An approved and unexpired vesting tentative map (pursuant to California 
Government Code §66498.1); or 

� An executed and valid development agreement (pursuant to California Government 
Code §65866); or 

� Issuance of a valid building permit with substantial work performed and substantial 
liabilities incurred in good faith reliance on the permit20 

An extension of time, or a proposed modification to an existing land use project that the local 
agency has determined to be in substantial conformance with previous approvals, is not 
subject to ALUC review.  If the proposed modification is determined not to be in substantial 
conformance, it must be submitted to the ALUC.   

18 State law allows local agencies to overrule the ALUCP and other ALUC decisions, after meeting specific requirements (California Public 
Utilities Code §§21676 and 21676.5).   

19 California Public Utilities Code §§21670(a)(2), 21674(a). 
20 Pursuant to the California Supreme Court decision in Avco Community Developers, Inc. v. South Coast Regional Com.  (1976) 17 Cal.3d 785,791, 

and its progeny. 



Implementation 
CHAPTER 1 

1-9 

 Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

The determination of whether a land use plan, regulation or project meets the criteria of an 
existing land use must be made by the ALUC (or the local agency after it has made its general 
plan and land use regulations consistent with the ALUCP). 

1.6.1 Existing Incompatible Land Uses 
An existing incompatible land use is inconsistent with one or more of the policies or standards 
of this ALUCP and is not subject to this ALUCP unless it proposes enlargement or 
reconstruction after the adoption of this ALUCP.  The proposed enlargement or reconstruction 
of existing incompatible land uses must be evaluated according to the applicable compatibility 
policies and standards listed below. 

Repair, maintenance or remodeling of an existing incompatible land use within an existing 
building footprint is not subject to the following policies and standards unless the work would 
result in a height that would increase any degree of airspace protection incompatibility. 

1.6.1.1 Noise 

An existing incompatible land use for noise is not sound attenuated to the levels required by 
Table 2-1 in Chapter 2.  

Enlargement or reconstruction of uses described as “incompatible” in Table 2-1 is inconsistent 
with this ALUCP and is not allowed. 

Enlargement and reconstruction of land uses described as “conditionally compatible” in 
Table 2-1, but which do not comply with the stated conditions, are subject to ALUC review 
and the following requirements: 

� The enlarged portion of the building must be sound-attenuated as required by 
Table 2-1 

� Reconstructed buildings must be fully sound-attenuated as required by Table 2-1 

1.6.1.2 Safety 

An existing incompatible land use for safety either exceeds the residential density or 
nonresidential intensity levels listed in Table 3-1 in Chapter 3. 

Enlargement and reconstruction of uses described as “incompatible” in Table 3-1 is 
inconsistent with this ALUCP and is not allowed. 

Enlargement and reconstruction of land uses described as “conditionally compatible” in  
Table 3-1 but which do not comply with the stated conditions are subject to ALUC review and 
the following requirements: 

 

 

 



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-10 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

�� Residential Uses Only 

− An existing incompatible residential use may be expanded in building area or 
reconstructed if there is no increase in the number of dwelling units.  A second 
dwelling unit, as defined by State law, 21 is not counted toward this limitation.  

� Nonresidential Uses Only 

− An existing incompatible nonresidential use may be expanded in building area or 
reconstructed if there is no increase in the intensity of the use.  

− Existing incompatible children’s schools (grades K–12) may be expanded, replaced 
or reconstructed if required by State law. New, expanded or modernized facilities to 
accommodate existing enrollment must be submitted to the ALUC for review. 

1.6.1.3 Airspace 

Enlargement and reconstruction of an existing incompatible land use are not subject to ALUC 
review for airspace purposes, unless the work would result in an increase in height that creates 
an obstruction or hazard (see Section 4.3 in Chapter 4).   

1.6.1.4 Overflight 

Since the overflight policies of this ALUCP only apply to new residential units, enlargement 
and reconstruction of existing residences within the overflight boundary shown on Exhibit 5-1 
are not subject to ALUC review. 

1.6.1.5 Discontinuance 

An existing incompatible land use (as indicated in Table 2-1 and Table 3-1) that has been 
abandoned for more than 24 months cannot qualify as an existing use.  An incompatible land 
use may be re-established prior to 24 months (as determined by the local agency) following 
initial abandonment without being subject to ALUC review.  Any resumption of a previously 
existing incompatible use may not add additional area or height which would increase any 
degree of incompatibility or increase intensity beyond what existed immediately prior to 
abandonment of the use. 

1.7 Single-Family Residence Development Right 
Notwithstanding any other policies of this ALUCP, construction of a single-family residence, 
including a second dwelling unit, is allowed subject to the following considerations: 

� The property is not located in the Clear Zone (CZ) 
� Each dwelling unit must be sound-attenuated, if required by the noise compatibility 

policies and standards of this ALUCP  

21 California Government Code §§65852.150, 65852. 



Implementation 
CHAPTER 1 

1-11 

 Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

�� An overflight agreement must be recorded, if required by the compatibility policies and 
standards of this ALUCP 

� Each dwelling unit must comply with the airspace protection policies and standards of 
this ALUCP 

1.8 Land Use Plans, Regulations and Projects in Progress 
at Time of ALUCP Adoption 

Land use plans and regulations for which an application to the local agency was deemed 
complete prior to the adoption of this ALUCP are not subject to further review by the ALUC.  
However, land use plans and regulations for which an application is deemed complete by the 
local agency after the adoption of this ALUCP must comply with the policies and standards of 
this ALUCP. 

Land use projects for which an application has been deemed complete per the Government 
Code by the local agency prior to the adoption of this ALUCP are not subject to further review.  
If a land use project application deemed complete prior to adoption of this ALUCP is revised 
after adoption of this ALUCP, it is subject to this ALUCP.  Land use project applications 
deemed complete by the local agency after the adoption of the ALUCP are subject to this 
ALUCP. 

What is consistency? 

Consistency means being compatible with the policies and standards for each applicable 
compatibility factor (noise, safety, airspace protection and overflight).  A proposed land use plan, 
regulation or project must comply with those policies and standards to be deemed consistent by the 
ALUC. 

1.9 ALUC Review Process before Local Agency 
Implementation 

This section describes the process for consistency determinations before a local agency: 

� Amends its land use plans and regulations to be consistent with this ALUCP, or 

� Overrules all or part of this ALUCP 

Exhibit 1-2 depicts the ALUC review process for land use plans, regulations and projects 
before a local agency has implemented or overruled this ALUCP. 

 

 

 



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-12 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

1.9.1 Review Area 1 
ALUC review is required for all land use plans, regulations and projects located in Review Area 
1.  ALUC staff may make a consistency determination for any land use plan, regulation or 
project that:  

� Is compatible with ALUCP noise and safety compatibility policies, and  

� Does not require Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) review22 or is determined by 
the FAA not to be a hazard or obstruction to air navigation 

1.9.2 Review Area 2 
ALUC review is required for land use plans and regulations within Review Area 2 proposing 
increases in height limits and for land use projects that: 

� Have received from the FAA a Notice of Presumed Hazard, a Determination of Hazard 
or a Determination of No Hazard subject to conditions, limitations or marking and 
lighting requirements23, and/or 

� Would create any of the following hazards, as discussed in Section 4.4 in Chapter 4:  

− Glare  

− Lighting 

− Electromagnetic interference 

− Dust, water vapor, and smoke 

− Thermal plumes  

− Bird attractants 

 

 
 

  

22  Title 14, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 77, Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace , Subpart B, Notice Requirements, 
§77.9. 

23  Title 14, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 77, Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace , Subpart B, Notice Requirements, 
§§77.25 – 77.35. 



PROJECT SPONSOR

LOCAL AGENCY

ALUC

LOCAL AGENCY

IF CONSISTENT

LOCAL AGENCY

IF INCONSISTENT

PROJECT SPONSOR

Submits land use plans, regulations and projects to local agency for approval 1

Submits land use plans, regulations  
and projects to the ALUC for consistency 

determination 

Reviews land use plans, regulations and 
projects and makes consistency determination 

(with conditions, if required)

Land use projects: local agency informs project 
sponsor of determination of consistency and 
issues permit(s) for consistent or conditionally 
consistent projects

Land use projects: local agency informs project 
sponsor of determination of inconsistency and 
denies the land use projects; or local agency 
overrules the ALUC and issues permit(s)

Land use plans and regulations: local 
agency adopts/approves the land use plans or 
regulations

Land use plans and regulations: local agency 
informs project sponsor of determination of 
inconsistency and denies land use plans or 
regulations; or local agency overrules the ALUC 
and goes through the adoption/approval process

Proceeds with the implementation of the land use plans and regulations, or the development  
of the land use projects

Exhibit 1-2

ALUC Review Before Local Agency Implementation

CHAPTER 1
Implementation

Note: 1. This includes land use plan amendments proposed by a project sponsor and rezones.

Source/Prepared by: Ricondo & Associates, Inc., June 2013.

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
PREL IMINARY DR AFTDRAFT

1-13



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-14 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

  



Implementation 
CHAPTER 1 

1-15 

 Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

1.9.3 Consistency Determination Review Process 
Local agencies must submit an application for consistency determination to the ALUC for 
proposed land use plans, regulations and projects as required by this ALUCP.24  

The application must contain information described in Appendix B.  The procedures discussed 
in the following sections apply. 

1.9.3.1 Review of Application for Completeness 

ALUC staff must determine if the application for consistency determination from the local 
agency is complete and notify the local agency of application completeness in writing within 
30 calendar days after receipt of an application.   

If the application for consistency determination is incomplete, ALUC staff will identify the 
information required to complete the application and inform the local agency.  If additional 
information is required, a new 30-calendar day review period begins after the additional 
information is received by ALUC staff.  

If ALUC staff does not make a written determination of completeness within 30 calendar days 
after receipt of an application for consistency determination, the application is considered 
complete. 

1.9.3.2 Consistency Review Timeframe 

The ALUC must respond to a local agency’s request for consistency determination within 60 
calendar days after the application is deemed complete by ALUC staff.   

The 60 calendar day review period may be extended if the local agency agrees in writing or so 
states at an ALUC meeting. 

If the ALUC fails to act within 60 calendar days, the proposed land use plan, regulation or 
project is considered consistent with this ALUCP.25 

1.9.3.3 Consistency Determination Result 

The ALUC must notify the local agency in writing of its consistency determination.  A proposed 
land use plan, regulation or project is determined to be one of the following: 

� Consistent with all four compatibility factors in this ALUCP.  The local agency can 
proceed with its approval. 

� Conditionally consistent with this ALUCP.  Any specified conditions must correspond 
to the policies and standards of this ALUCP.  Unless a condition specifies subsequent 
review by the ALUC, responsibility to ensure compliance with conditions rests with 
the local agency with permit or approval authority. 

24 California Public Utilities Code § 21676 
25 California Public Utilities Code §21676(d). 



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-16 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

� Not consistent with this ALUCP. The ALUC must explain the specific conflicts with 
ALUCP policies and standards. The local agency may not approve the proposed land 
use plan, regulation or project, unless it overrules the ALUC’s finding of inconsistency 
in accordance with applicable State law.26 

Exhibit 1-3 presents a flow diagram summarizing the consistency determination review 
process. 

1.10 Local Agency Implementation 

1.10.1 Local Agency Requirements and Responsibilities 
Within 180 calendar days of the ALUC’s adoption or amendment of this ALUCP, each local 
agency affected by this ALUCP must: 27 

� Amend its land use plans and regulations to be consistent with this ALUCP, if needed, 
or 

� Overrule this ALUCP by a two-thirds vote of its governing body after adopting 
findings that justify the overrule and providing notice, as required by law28 

If a local agency fails to take either action, it must follow the review process detailed in 
Section 1.9.  

 

  

26 California Public Utilities Code §21675.1(d). 
27 California Government Code §65302.3(a), (b) and (c). 
28 California Public Utilities Code §21675.1(d). 



Exhibit 1-3

Consistency Determination Review Process

CHAPTER 1
Implementation

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
PRELIMINARY DRAFT 

Note: 1. California Public Utilities Code §21676(d).
Source: Ricondo & Associates, Inc., June 2013. 
Prepared by:  Ricondo & Associates, Inc., June 2013.

ALUC REVIEW PERIOD
30 CALENDAR DAYS

ALUC REVIEW PERIOD
30 CALENDAR DAYS

ALUC 
CONSISTENCY

REVIEW PERIOD
60 CALENDAR  

DAYS1

RECEIPT 
OF APPLICATION

RECEIPT 
OF UPDATED 
APPLICATION

APPLICATION
INCOMPLETE

APPLICATION
COMPLETE

CONSISTENT CONDITIONALLY 
CONSISTENT

APPLICATION
COMPLETE

ALUC WRITTEN 
DETERMINATION OF 

COMPLETENESS

ALUC WRITTEN 
DETERMINATION OF 

COMPLETENESS

INCONSISTENT

ALUC REQUESTS
ADDITIONAL 

INFORMATION

DRAFT

1-17



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-18 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 
  



Implementation 
CHAPTER 1 

1-19 

 Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

1.10.2 Establishing Consistency of Local Agency Land Use Plans and 
Regulations 

To establish consistency of land use plans and regulations with this ALUCP, local agencies 
must eliminate conflicts with this ALUCP.  Conflicts may include: 

� Land use plan or zoning designations that permit incompatible uses within noise 
contours or safety zones 

� Permissible nonresidential intensities that exceed this ALUCP’s intensity limits in any 
safety zone 

� Permissible heights that would constitute a hazard as determined by the FAA 

Land use designations in local agency land use plans that reflect existing land uses do not 
render the local agency plans inconsistent with this ALUCP. However, local agencies must limit 
the expansion and reconstruction of existing land uses that are not consistent with this ALUCP 
in accordance with the existing incompatible land use policies and standards of this ALUCP 
(see Section 1.6.1). 

1.10.2.1 Methods of Implementing this ALUCP 

A local agency can make its land use plans and regulations consistent with this ALUCP in the 
following ways: 

� Incorporate ALUCP policies into General Plan Elements—Individual elements of local 
general plans may be amended to incorporate applicable policies from this ALUCP.  
For example, noise compatibility policies and standards could be added to the noise 
element, safety policies to the safety element, and other policies, standards and maps 
to the land use element 

� Adopt ALUCP as Stand-Alone Document—Local agencies may adopt this ALUCP as a 
local policy document 

� Adopt Overlay Zone—Local agencies may incorporate the policies and standards of 
this ALUCP into an overlay zone to supplement the requirements of the standard 
land use zoning districts 

If the local agency’s land use plans and regulations are consistent with this ALUCP, no action 
to adopt additional policies or regulations is required.  However, only the ALUC can determine 
whether or not a local agency’s land use plans and regulations are consistent with this ALUCP. 

 



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-20 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

What is an Overlay Zone? 

An overlay zone is a special purpose zoning district.  The regulations within an overlay zone 
supplement the requirements of the underlying standard zoning districts (typically  residential, 
commercial, or industrial).  Overlay zones are used to achieve a special purpose, such as flood hazard 
protection or the preservation of a historic district, without directly changing the underlying land use 
in the affected area. 

1.10.2.2 Ensuring Long-Term Compliance with this ALUCP 

Local agency land use plans and regulations must include provisions for long-term compliance 
with this ALUCP.  Local agencies must define the process they will follow when revising or 
amending land use plans and regulations, or when reviewing and approving land use projects 
within the AIA to ensure that they will be consistent with this ALUCP.  Land use plans and 
regulations, including zoning, subdivision and building regulations, must include standards for 
reviewing land use projects for consistency with this ALUCP.  More information regarding 
implementation can be found in Appendix B.  

1.11 ALUC Review after Local Agency Implementation  
Exhibits 1-4 and 1-5 depict the ALUC review process for land use plans, regulations and 
projects after a local agency has implemented this ALUCP. 

1.11.1 Review of Land Use Plans and Regulations 
Proposed land use plans and regulations within Review Area 1 always require ALUC review.  
ALUC review is also required for land use plans and regulations within Review Area 2 
proposing increases in height limits.   

1.11.2 Review of Land Use Projects 
After local agency implementation or overrule of this ALUCP, land use projects are no longer 
required to be submitted to the ALUC for review, unless the following apply:   

� The land use project includes a land use plan amendment or rezone 

� The land use project has received a determination from the FAA that it will constitute 
a hazard or obstruction to air navigation   

� The land use project has characteristics that may result in the creation of a hazard to 
air navigation, as discussed in Section 4.4 in Chapter 4 

1.11.3 Voluntary Review of Land Use Projects  
After implementation, local agencies may choose to submit land use projects to the ALUC for 
advisory review. Any ALUC recommendation would be non-binding. 
  



PROJECT SPONSOR

LOCAL AGENCY

ALUC

Submits land use plans and regulations to local agency for approval and permitting 1

Submits only land use plans and regulations (not projects) for consistency determination 

Reviews land use plans and regulations and makes consistency determination  
(with conditions, if required)

LOCAL AGENCY

IF CONSISTENT

LOCAL AGENCY

IF INCONSISTENT

PROJECT SPONSOR

Informs project sponsor of determination of 
consistency and adopts/approves land use plans 

and regulations (with ALUC conditions, if required)

Informs project sponsor of determination of 
inconsistency and denies land use plans and 

regulations; or overrules the ALUC and adopts/
approves land use plans and regulations

Proceeds with the implementation of the land use plans and regulations

Exhibit 1-4

ALUC Review After Local Agency Implementation
Land Use Plans and Regulations

CHAPTER 1
Implementation

Note: 1. This includes land use plan amendments proposed by a project sponsor and rezones.

Source/Prepared by: Ricondo & Associates, Inc., June 2013.

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
PREL IMINARY DR AFTDRAFT

1-21



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-22 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

  



PROJECT SPONSOR

PROJECT SPONSOR

LOCAL AGENCY

ALUC

LOCAL AGENCY

Submits land use projects to local agency for approval and permitting

Proceeds with the development of the land use projects

Reviews land use projects for 
compliance with the general plan or 
zoning ordinance (which have been 

deemed consistent by the ALUC)

May choose 
to submit land use projects to the  

ALUC for advisory review

Reviews land use projects and 
provides compatibility advice and 

recommendations

Proceeds with permitting having 
considered the ALUC advice and 

recommendations

Denies 
permits

Issues 
permits

IF COMPLIANT IF 
NONCOMPLIANT

Exhibit 1-5

ALUC Review After Local Agency Implementation
Land Use Projects

CHAPTER 1
Implementation

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
PREL IMINARY DR AFT

Source/Prepared by: Ricondo & Associates, Inc., June 2013.

DRAFT

1-23



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-24 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

  



Implementation 
CHAPTER 1 

1-25 

 Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

1.11.4 Consistency Determination Review Process 
Local agencies must submit to the ALUC an application for consistency determination for 
proposed land use plans and regulations as required by this ALUCP.29 The consistency 
determination review process for land use plans and regulations follows the same process as 
discussed in Section 1.9.3. 

1.12 ALUC Review of Proposed Airport Plans and Projects 
The ALUC is required by State law to review proposed airport plans for consistency with this 
ALUCP.30  This requirement ensures that the ALUC is kept informed of changes in airport plans 
so that appropriate amendments to this ALUCP can be made. 

1.12.1 Airport Plans and Projects 
The following airport plans and projects require ALUC review:31 

� Any AICUZ study or amendments to an AICUZ study that would modify previously 
adopted airport plans 

� Any proposal for airport expansion.  Airport expansion is defined to include the 
construction of a new runway, the extension or realignment of an existing runway, 
the acquisition of runway protection zones or the acquisition of any interest in land 
for the purposes identified above.  

1.12.2 ALUC Actions on Airport Plans 
The ALUC should determine if an AICUZ or expansion plan is consistent or inconsistent with 
this ALUCP.  When an inconsistency exists, the ALUC will amend this ALUCP to reflect the 
assumptions and recommendations in the AICUZ study.  

1.12.3 Consistency Determination Result 
A proposed airport plan or project is determined to be one of the following: 

� Consistent: no revisions or amendments to the ALUCP are required 

� Inconsistent: the ALUC must amend this ALUCP32 

1.12.4 Limit of ALUC Authority Over Airport 
SDCRAA has no authority over airport operations or development on airport property.33 

 

29 California Public Utilities Code § 21676(b). 
30 California Public Utilities Code §21676(c). 
31 California Public Utilities Code §21676(c); California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, California Airport Land Use 

Planning Handbook, October 2011, pp. 6-3 – 6-4. 
32  California Public Utilities Code §21675(a). 
33 California Public Utilities Code §21674(e). 



CHAPTER 1 
Implementation 

1-26 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 

 
 

 

 

 



AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION 
San Diego County

 

2-1 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

CHAPTER 2  

Noise Compatibility Policies 
and Standards 

Chapter 2 provides the noise contour map for Naval Outlying Landing Field 
Imperial Beach (NOLF IB) and applicable compatibility policies and 
standards.  

Appendix E2 provides the technical basis for delineating the noise contours 
and establishing the policies and standards. 

In addition to the policies and standards established by this chapter, a 
project sponsor must also review all policies and standards established by 
this ALUCP. 

The policies of this chapter apply only to new development or 
redevelopment.  The policies do not apply to existing land uses, except as 
noted in Section 1.6 in Chapter 1. 

A list of the noise compatibility policies is provided below. 

Policy N.1 Noise Contour Map and Table 

Policy N.2 Sound Attenuation 

Policy N.3 Evaluation of Noise Compatibility for Development with a Mix of 
Uses  

Policy N.4 Building Split by a Noise Contour 

Policy N.5 Land Uses Not Specified in Table 2-1 

Policy N.6 New Uses in Existing Buildings 

 

 



CHAPTER 2 
Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

2-2 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards 

Policy N.1 Noise Contour Map and Table 

This ALUCP establishes the 60 dB CNEL contour as the threshold above which 
noise compatibility standards apply.1 Noise contours by 5 dB CNEL 
increments are depicted in Exhibit 2-1.   

Proposed land uses will be evaluated for consistency with the standards 
contained in Table 2-1.  These standards establish three land use 
compatibility categories, as follows:  

Compatible (green): The use is consistent with this ALUCP  

Conditionally compatible (yellow): The use is consistent with this ALUCP 
if the conditions described in Table 2-1 are met 

Incompatible (red): The use is inconsistent with this ALUCP 

Land uses located outside the 60 dB CNEL contour are not subject to the 
noise compatibility policies and standards of this ALUCP.   

Policy N.2 Sound Attenuation 

Conditionally compatible land uses must incorporate sound attenuation to 
achieve indoor noise levels as specified in Table 2-1. 

Policy N.3 Evaluation of Noise Compatibility for Development with a Mix of Uses 
When a land use project involves a combination of different land uses listed 
in Table 2-1, each component use must comply with the applicable noise 
standards.   

1  California Department of Transportation, Division of Aeronautics, California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook, October 2011, p. 4-46. 



60 dB CNEL

65 dB CNEL

MONUMENT RD

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

 S
T

9

8

26
27

Imperial Beach

San Diego

60 dB CNEL

70 dB CNEL

75 dB CNEL

65 dB CNEL

IMPERIAL BEACH BLVD

C
O

N
N

E
C

TI
C

U
T 

S
T

A
LL

E
Y

TOWER RD

9T
H

 S
T

TH
E

R
M

A
L 

AV

S
AT

U
R

N
 B

LV
D

G
R

E
E

N
 S

T

FERN AV

GROVE AV

ILEX AV

RIMBEY AV

LEON AV

TOCAYO AV

SUNSET AV
11

TH
 S

T

13
TH

 S
T

14
TH

 S
T

15
TH

 S
T

THELBORN WY

TO
W

E
R

 R
D

BOUNDARY RD

Exhibit 2-1

Noise Contour Map

Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards
CHAPTER 2

§̈¦5

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT contain
geographic information copyrighted by SanGIS.
All Rights Reserved.

NOLF 
Imperial Beach

Forecast Noise Exposure Ranges:

60 - 65 dB CNEL
65 - 70 dB CNEL
70 - 75 dB CNEL
75 + dB CNEL

Pacific Ocean

Note:        Airfield elevation is 24 feet above mean sea level (MSL)

Sources:  San Diego Geographic Information Source (SanGIS),
                2008 and 2011 (municipal boundaries, roads, rivers and
                highways); Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Air
                Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update for 
                Naval Air Station North Island and Naval Outlying Field
                Imperial Beach, California, 2011, (airport property
                boundary, runways, airfield, noise contours).

Prepared by:  Ricondo & Associates, Inc., February 2014.

Tijuana River

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Land Use Compatibility Plan
Preliminary Draft

LEGEND

Major Roads

Highways

Water

Municipal Boundaries

High Terrain Area:  Low Overflights

north

1,600 ft.0

M E X I C OU N I T E D  S T A T E S  O F  A M E R I C A

Airport Property Boundary

DRAFT

2-3



CHAPTER 2 
Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

2-4 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 



Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 2 

2-5 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Table 2-1 (1 of 2) Noise Compatibility Standards 

SLUCM No.* 

Land Use Category  
Refer to Appendix A for definitions of all land uses in this table.  

Land uses not specifically listed shall be evaluated, as determined by 
the ALUC, using the criteria for similar uses.  

Noise Contour Range (dB CNEL) 

60–65 65–70 70–75 75+ 
RESIDENTIAL  

11, 14 Single-Family, Multi-Family, Mobile Home 45       
12 Group Quarters   45/50**       
13 Residential Hotel 45/50**       

COMMERCIAL, OFFICE, SERVICE, TRANSIENT LODGING 
15, 751 Hotel, Motel, Resort, Guest Camp 45/50**       

61, 631, 632, 
633, 635, 636, 

65, 671, 
8221-8222 

Office - Medical/Dental, Professional Services, Civic 

  

  50 50 

51-59, 62 
Wholesale & Retail Sales, Eating/Drinking Establishment, Personal 
Services, Funeral Chapel/Mortuary   

      

64, 66 
Repair Services (e.g., Auto, Electrical, Furniture), Car Wash, Contract 
Construction Service   

  50 50 

7425 Sport/Fitness Facility      50 50 
721 Auditorium, Concert Hall, Theatre 45Ɨ 45 45   

7211, 7213 Amphitheater, Outdoor Music Shell         
EDUCATIONAL, INSTITUTIONAL, PUBLIC SERVICES 

691, 699, 
7119, 723, 

729 
Assembly - Adult (Religious, Fraternal, Other) 45Ɨ 45     

691, 
7119, 729 

Assembly - Children (Instructional Studio, Cultural Heritage School, 
Religious, Other) 

45Ɨ ƗƗ 
    

624 Cemetery     50 50 

68 
Child Day Care and School (Preschool, Kindergarten through Grade 
12), Adult School (College, University, Vocational/Trade School) 

45Ɨ ƗƗ 
    

672 Fire, Police Station     50 50 
674 Jail, Prison         

7111, 7112, 
7113 

Library, Museum, Gallery 45Ɨ 45 45   

6513, 6516, 
6517 

Medical Care - Hospital, Out-Patient Surgery Center, Congregate 
Care, Nursing and Convalescent Home 

45Ɨ ƗƗ 
    

INDUSTRIAL 
 4214, 4222, 

4315 
Vehicle Storage - Construction, Bus, Motor Freight, Aircraft 

    
50 50 

21-39, 821 Manufacturing/Processing      50 50 
85, 89 Mining, Extractive Industry     50 50 
6391 Research and Development - Scientific, Technical     50 50 

485 
Sanitary Landfill, Solid Waste Incinerator, Recycling Center, Solid 
Waste Transfer Station     

50 50 

6373-6379 Warehousing/Storage     50 50 

  



CHAPTER 2 
Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

2-6 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Table 2-1 (2 of 2) Noise Compatibility Standard 

SLUCM No.* 

Land Use Category  
Refer to Appendix A for definitions of all land uses in this table.  

Land uses not specifically listed shall be evaluated, as determined by 
the ALUC, using the criteria for similar uses.  

Noise Contour Range (dB CNEL) 

60–65 65–70 70–75 75+ 
TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION, UTILITIES 

46 Auto Parking      50 50 
47 Communication - Cell Phone, TV/Radio Tower         

481-484, 489 
Utilities - Electrical, Gas, Water, Wastewater, Wind Turbine, 
Photovoltaic Solar Array     

50 50 

4113, 4115, 
4122, 4211-
4213, 4312, 
4314, 4411, 

4413 

Passenger Terminal (air, bus, rail, marine) 

    

    

4114, 4221, 
4313, 4412 

Cargo Terminal (air, bus, rail marine) 
    

    

RECREATION, PARK, OPEN SPACE 
722 Arena, Stadium         
744 Marina         

74, 76 
Park, Recreation (golf course, tennis court, riding stable, water 
sports)         

712 Nature Exhibits (botanical garden, zoo)         

73 
Amusements (fairground, amusement park, shooting or golf driving 
range, etc.)         

AGRICULTURE 
81-84 Agriculture, Aquaculture         

LEGEND 
  Compatible: Use is allowed. 

45 
Conditionally Compatible: 
Use is allowed subject to 
stated conditions. 

Indoor uses: building must be treated to attenuate outdoor noise to 45 dB CNEL indoors. 
50 Indoor uses: building must be treated to attenuate outdoor noise to 50 dB CNEL indoors. 

45/50 
Sleeping rooms must be attenuated to reduce outdoor noise to 45 dB CNEL indoors; other 
indoor areas must be attenuated to 50 dB CNEL. 

  Incompatible: Use is not allowed. 
  Not applicable (on base property). 

NOTES 
* Land use codes from Standard Land Use Coding Manual, Urban Renewal Administration, Housing and Home 

Finance Agency and Bureau of Public Roads, Department of Commerce, 1965.  
** Required by the California Building Code, Title 24, Part 2, Chapter 12, §1207.11.3, Airport Noise Sources. 
Ɨ Based on standards adopted by the ALUC for other airports in San Diego County. 
ƗƗ While these uses are considered conditionally compatible in the AICUZ study, they are incompatible under the 

State Noise Law.  See California Code of Regulations, Title 21, §5014, Incompatible Uses within the Noise Impact 
Boundary. 

Source: Ricondo & Associates, Inc., October 2013.  Adapted from The Onyx Group, Air Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) 
Update, Naval Air Station North Island and Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach, California, prepared for NAVFAC-SW, 2011, 
Table C-1. 
Prepared by: Ricondo & Associates, Inc., November 2013. 



Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 2 

2-7 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Policy N.4 Building Split by a Noise Contour 
The standards for the noise contour range within which more than 50 
percent of the building is located, as determined by gross floor area (in 
square feet), apply. 

 
For Illustrative Purposes Only 

Policy N.5 Land Uses Not Specified in Table 2-1 

For any proposed land use that is not specified in Table 2-1, the ALUC must 
determine the most similar land use based upon the land use definitions and 
guidance in Appendix A.  The ALUC may also consider the noise sensitivity 
of the land use in determining the most similar land use.  Considerations 
include whether the land use involves: 

� Sleeping rooms  
� Activities where a quiet indoor environment is needed  

Once the ALUC determines the most similar land use, standards for that land 
use will apply. 

Policy N.6 New Uses in Existing Buildings 

No ALUC review is required when new compatible or conditionally 
compatible uses, as described in Table 2-1, are proposed within a portion of 
an existing building, such as a multi-tenant shopping center.  However, 
ALUC review is required for new residential, public assembly and 
adult school uses.2  Incompatible uses are not allowed. 

ALUC review is required when a new use (or multiple uses) is proposed to 
entirely occupy an existing building.  In those cases, the new use or uses 
must comply with the applicable conditions in Table 2-1.   

 

2  Title 21, California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 6, Noise Standards, Section 5014. 



CHAPTER 2 
Noise Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

2-8 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 



AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION 
San Diego County

 

3-1 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

CHAPTER 3  

Safety Compatibility 
Policies and Standards 

Chapter 3 provides a map of the safety zones for Naval Outlying Landing 
Field Imperial Beach (NOLF IB) and applicable policies and standards.   

Appendix E3 explains the technical basis for delineating the safety 
zones and establishing the safety compatibility policies and standards.   

In addition to the policies and standards established by this chapter, a 
project sponsor must also review all policies and standards established 
by this ALUCP. 

The policies of this chapter apply only to new development or 
redevelopment.  The policies do not apply to existing land uses, except 
as noted in Section 1.6 in Chapter 1.  A list of the safety compatibility 
policies is provided below. 

Policy S.1 Safety Compatibility Zone Map and Table 

Policy S.2 Projects with a Single Conditionally Compatible Use 

Policy S.3 Projects with Multiple Conditionally Compatible Uses 

Policy S.4 Ancillary Uses 

Policy S.5 Buildings Split by Safety Zone Boundaries 

Policy S.6 Land Uses Not Specified in Table 3-1 

Policy S.7 New Uses in Existing Buildings 

 



CHAPTER 3 
Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

3-2 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

DRAFT 

3.1 Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards 

Policy S.1 Safety Compatibility Zone Map and Table 

This ALUCP establishes the safety zones where safety policies and standards apply, as 
depicted in Exhibit 3-1.   

Table 3-1 establishes the safety compatibility standards that apply to different land 
use categories within each safety zone.  Land uses are classified within each safety 
zone as:   

Conditionally compatible (yellow): The use is consistent with this ALUCP if the 
conditions described in Table 3-1 are met.  For nonresidential uses, the 
maximum allowable intensity is indicated by safety zone.  Nonresidential 
intensity is a measure of the number of people per net acre and, for many 
conditionally compatible uses, is regulated through maximum floor area ratios 
(FARs). 

Incompatible (red): The use is inconsistent with this ALUCP. 

 

What are Clear Zones (CZ) and Accident Potential Zones (APZ)? 

Clear Zones (CZ) are trapezoid-shaped safety zones defined off the immediate ends of runways at 
military airfields. They are equivalent to runway protection zones at civilian airports.  

Accident Potential Zones (APZ) are safety-related zones defined by AICUZ studies for areas beyond 
CZs at military airfields. 

 



Imperial Beach

Primary SurfacePrimary Surface

MONUMENT RD

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

 S
T

9

8

26
27

M E X I C OU N I T E D  S T A T E S  O F  A M E R I C A

San Diego

IMPERIAL BEACH BLVD

C
O

N
N

E
C

TI
C

U
T 

S
T

A
LL

E
Y

TOWER RD

9T
H

 S
T

TH
E

R
M

A
L 

AV

S
AT

U
R

N
 B

LV
D

G
R

E
E

N
 S

T

FERN AV

GROVE AV

ILEX AV

RIMBEY AV

LEON AV

TOCAYO AV

SUNSET AV
11

TH
 S

T

13
TH

 S
T

14
TH

 S
T

15
TH

 S
T

THELBORN WY

TO
W

E
R

 R
D

BOUNDARY RD

APZ I

C
le

ar
 Z

on
e

APZ I

APZ I

C
le

ar
 Z

on
e

Primary Surface

Primary Surface

Clear Zone

Clear Zone

Exhibit 3-1

Safety Compatibility Zones

Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards
CHAPTER 3

§̈¦5

LEGEND

Major Roads

Highways

Municipal Boundaries

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT contain
geographic information copyrighted by SanGIS.
All Rights Reserved.

Water

NOLF 
Imperial Beach

Safety Compatibility Zones:

Pacific Ocean

Note:        Airfield elevation is 24 feet above mean sea level (MSL)

Sources:  San Diego Geographic Information Source (SanGIS),
                2008 and 2011 (municipal boundaries, roads, rivers and
                highways); Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Air
                Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update for 
                Naval Air Station North Island and Naval Outlying Field
                Imperial Beach, California, 2011, (airport property
                boundary, runways, airfield, safety zones).

Prepared by:  Ricondo & Associates, Inc., February 2014.

Tijuana River

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Land Use Compatibility Plan
Preliminary Draft

Accident Potential Zone (APZ) I

Clear Zone (CZ)

Primary Surface

north

1,600 ft.0

Airport Property Boundary

DRAFT

3-3



CHAPTER 3 
Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

3-4 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 
 
 



Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 3 

 
3-5 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Table 3-1 (1 of 4) Safety Compatibility Standards 

SLUCM No.* 

Land Use Category  
 

Refer to Appendix A for definitions of all 
land uses in this table.  Land uses not 

specifically listed shall be evaluated, as 
determined by the ALUC, using the criteria 

for similar uses.  

Safety Zones § Conditions 
 

Uses must adhere to the FAR 
and maximum intensity 

limits as indicated. 

Occupancy 
Factor ƚ 

CZ APZ I 
Maximum 

Intensity Limits 
(people per 

acre) 
10 25 

RESIDENTIAL 

11, 14 Single-Family, Multi-Family, Mobile Home       N/A 

12 Group Quarters       N/A 

13 Residential Hotel       N/A 

COMMERCIAL, OFFICE, SERVICE, TRANSIENT LODGING 

15, 751 Hotel, Motel, Resort, Guest Camp       N/A 

61, 631, 632, 
633, 635, 

636, 65, 671, 
8221, 8222 

Office - Medical/Dental, Professional 
Services, Civic 

      N/A 

51 Wholesale Trade   0.28 
 

250 

53, 54, 56-
59, 62 

Retail Sales (except as listed below), 
Eating/Drinking Establishment, Personal 
Services, Funeral Chapel/Mortuary 

    
 

N/A 

521 Lumber, Building Material Sales   0.20 
 

250 

522, 523, 
524, 525 

Heating and Plumbing, Paint, Electrical, 
Hardware and Farm Equipment Sales 

  0.12 
 

250 

55 
Automotive, Marine Craft, Aircraft, and 
Heavy Equipment Sales 

  0.14 
 

250 

64, 66 
Repair Services (e.g., Auto, Electrical, 
Furniture), Car Washes, Contract 
Construction Services 

  0.11 
 

250 

7425 Sport/Fitness Facility        N/A 

721 Auditorium, Concert Hall, Theatre       N/A 

7211, 7213 Amphitheater, Outdoor Music Shell       N/A 

  



CHAPTER 3 
Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

3-6 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

DRAFT 

Table 3-1 (2 of 4) Safety Compatibility Standards 

SLUCM No.* 

Land Use Category  
 

Refer to Appendix A for definitions of all 
land uses in this table.  Land uses not 

specifically listed shall be evaluated, as 
determined by the ALUC, using the criteria 

for similar uses.  

Safety Zones § Conditions 
 

Uses must adhere to the FAR 
and maximum intensity 

limits as indicated. 

Occupancy 
Factor ƚ 

CZ APZ I 

Maximum 
Intensity Limits 

(people per 
acre) 

10 25 
EDUCATIONAL, INSTITUTIONAL, PUBLIC SERVICES 

691, 699, 
7119, 723, 

729 

Assembly - Adult (Religious, Fraternal, 
Other) 

      N/A 

691, 
7119, 729 

Assembly - Children (Instructional Studio, 
Cultural Heritage School, Religious, Other) 

      N/A 

624 Cemetery   0.11 
No chapels or indoor places 
of assembly.   

N/A 

68 

Child Day Care and School (Preschool, 
Kindergarten through Grade 12), Adult 
School (College, University, 
Vocational/Trade School) 

      N/A 

672 Fire, Police Station       N/A 

674 Jail, Prison       N/A 

7111, 7112, 
7113 

Library, Museum, Gallery       N/A 

6513, 6516, 
6517 

Medical Care - Hospital, Out-Patient 
Surgery Center, Congregate Care, Nursing 
and Convalescent Home 

      N/A 

INDUSTRIAL 

 4214, 4222, 
4315 

Vehicle Storage - Construction, Bus, Motor 
Freight, Aircraft  

  0.28 

No processing or storage of 
hazardous materials; 
maximum intensity limit 
indicated at top of page. 

1,000 

21-23, 28, 
31-35 

Manufacturing (except as listed below)     
 

N/A 

24-27, 39 
Manufacturing - Low Intensity: lumber, 
wood; furniture, fixtures; paper, printing, 
publishing 

  0.28 
 

300 

29, 6379 Processing/Storage of Hazardous Materials       N/A 

85, 89 Mining, Extractive Industry   0.28 
No use of explosives; 
maximum intensity limit 
indicated at top of page. 

1,000 

6391 
Research and Development - Scientific, 
Technical 

      N/A 

485 
Sanitary Landfill, Solid Waste Incinerator, 
Recycling Center, Solid Waste Transfer 
Station 

      N/A 

6373-6379 
Warehousing/Storage (excluding hazardous 
materials) 

  1.00 
 

1,000 

  



Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 3 

 
3-7 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Table 3-1 (3 of 4) Safety Compatibility Standards 

SLUCM No.* 

Land Use Category  
 

Refer to Appendix A for definitions of all 
land uses in this table.  Land uses not 

specifically listed shall be evaluated, as 
determined by the ALUC, using the criteria 

for similar uses.  

Safety Zones § Conditions 
 

Uses must adhere to the FAR 
and maximum intensity 

limits as indicated. 

Occupancy 
Factor ƚ 

CZ APZ I 
Maximum 

Intensity Limits 
(people per 

acre) 
10 25 

TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNICATION, UTILITIES 

46 Auto Parking    0.28 
 

1,000 

47 
Communication - Cell Phone, TV/Radio 
Tower 

  0.28 No height obstructions and 
no frequency interference. 

N/A 

4812 
Electrical Power Generation Plant 
(conventionally fueled) 

    
  

N/A 

4812 Wind Turbine, Photovoltaic Solar Array   0.28 No glare and no height 
obstructions. 

N/A 

4813 Electrical Substation   0.28 No above-ground 
transmission lines. 

N/A 

4832, 4841, 
4842, 4849 

Water, Wastewater Treatment Plant   0.28 

Must be designed and 
operated to avoid attracting 
birds; maximum intensity 
limit indicated at top of 
page.  

1,000 

4113, 4115, 
4122, 4211-
4213, 4312, 
4314, 4411, 

4413 

Passenger Terminal (air, bus, rail, marine)       N/A 

4114, 4221, 
4313, 4412 

Cargo/Freight Terminal (air, bus, rail, 
marine) 

  0.28 
 

1,000 

RECREATION, PARK, OPEN SPACE 

722 Arena, Stadium       N/A 

744 Marina    
No indoor places of 
assembly. 

N/A 

74, 76 
Park, Recreation (golf course, tennis court, 
riding stable, water sports) 

  0.11 
No tot lots and no indoor 
places of assembly. 

N/A 

712 Nature Exhibits (botanical garden, zoo)   
 

No indoor places of 
assembly. 

N/A 

73 
Amusements (fairground, amusement park, 
shooting or golf driving range, etc.) 

      N/A 

  



CHAPTER 3 
Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

3-8 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

DRAFT 

Table 3-1 (4 of 4) Safety Compatibility Standards 

SLUCM No.* 

Land Use Category  
 

Refer to Appendix A for definitions of all 
land uses in this table.  Land uses not 

specifically listed shall be evaluated, as 
determined by the ALUC, using the criteria 

for similar uses.  

Safety Zones § Conditions 
 

Uses must adhere to the FAR 
and maximum intensity limits 

as indicated. 

Occupancy 
Factor ƚ 

CZ APZ I 
Maximum 

Intensity Limits 
(people per 

acre) 

10 25 
AGRICULTURE 

81-84 Agriculture, Aquaculture   0.28 
No residential buildings; 
activities attracting birds are 
incompatible. 

N/A 

LEGEND 

#.## 
Conditionally Compatible: Use is allowed subject to stated conditions. Uses conditionally compatible are subject to 
stated Floor Area Ratio (FAR) limits. 

  Incompatible: Use is not allowed. 

  Not Applicable (On base property) 

NOTES 

 

* Land use codes from Standard Land Use Coding Manual, Urban Renewal Administration, Housing and Home Finance 
Agency and Bureau of Public Roads, Department of Commerce, 1965.  

 
 

ƚ Occupancy factor is expressed as square feet of floor area per person.  The occupancy factor is used to estimate the 
average intensity of conditionally compatible uses.   
N/A means "not applicable", because the land use is incompatible or does not involve the construction of habitable 
buildings.   

 
 

§ APZ = Accident Potential Zone 
CZ = Clear Zone  

Source: Ricondo & Associates, Inc., October 2013.  Adapted from The Onyx Group, Air Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) 
Update, Naval Air Station North Island and Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach, California, prepared for NAVFAC-SW, 2011, 
Table C-2. 
Prepared by:  Ricondo & Associates, Inc., November 2013.   



Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 3 

 
3-9 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 

3.2 Conditionally Compatible Land Uses 

What is Nonresidential Intensity? 

Intensity is a measure of the concentration of people in nonresidential land uses and is expressed by 
the number of people per acre.  Floor Area Ratio (FAR) can be used as an indirect indicator of 
intensity.  FAR is calculated by dividing the floor area of the building by the area of the lot. 

Policy S.2 Projects with a Single Conditionally Compatible Use 

The total intensity of a conditionally compatible nonresidential land use must 
not exceed the maximum allowable intensity in people per acre shown at the 
top of Table 3-1.  The maximum FARs indicated for conditionally compatible 
uses are a commonly used alternative metric for development intensity and 
are provided for the convenience of project applicants.  A proposed land use 
is deemed compliant with the intensity limits in Table 3-1 if it does not 
exceed the indicated FAR. 

A project may exceed the listed maximum FAR as long as the maximum 
allowable intensity in people per acre indicated at the top of Table 3-1 is not 
exceeded.  A project’s nonresidential intensity in people per acre may be 
calculated using the occupancy factors indicated for each land use category 
in Table 3-1.  Intensity in people per acre may be calculated by dividing the 
nonresidential floor area by the occupancy factor and then dividing the 
resulting quotient (occupancy) by the area of the project site in net acres. 
 

( 
Nonresidential Floor Area 

) / Site Area 
in acres = People per 

Acre Occupancy Factor 
 

The above formula must be used to determine the intensity of nonresidential 
buildings for land uses without assigned maximum FARs. 

Structures devoted to parking (whether above or below ground) are not to be 
included in the gross square footage of the building for purposes of 
calculating the FAR. 

New structures, other than those required for aeronautical purposes, are not 
compatible within the CZ. 

  



CHAPTER 3 
Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

3-10 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

DRAFT 

What does “net acreage” mean? 

Net acreage refers to the lot area not including land dedicated for public purposes, such as streets or 
parks. 

Policy S.3 Projects with Multiple Conditionally Compatible Uses 

For projects involving multiple conditionally compatible nonresidential uses, 
the FAR for each use must not exceed the maximum allowable FAR for the 
use as shown in Table 3-1.  The FAR for each component use can be 
calculated using the following steps: 

1. Determine the proportion of the floor area of each use to the total 
project floor area by dividing the floor area dedicated to the 
component use by the total floor area. 

2. Calculate the amount of total land area proportionate to the 
component use by multiplying the net acreage of the project site by 
the proportion calculated in step 1 above. 

3. The FAR for the component use may then be calculated by dividing 
the floor area dedicated to the use by the proportionate amount of 
site land area calculated in step 2 above. 

Structures devoted to parking (whether above or below ground) are not to be 
included in the gross square footage of the building for purposes of 
calculating the FAR.  

See Example B in Table 3-2 for an example of calculating intensity for a 
nonresidential project with multiple uses. 

3.3 Supplemental Safety Compatibility Policies 

Policy S.4 Ancillary Uses 

Ancillary uses are primarily intended for use by the 
employees/residents/occupants of a land use project and cumulatively 
occupy no more than 10 percent of the total floor area.   

Ancillary uses occupying no more than 10 percent of the total floor area that 
are conditionally compatible (yellow) according to Table 3-1 are not included 
in the calculation of intensity.  Ancillary uses that are listed as “incompatible” 
(red) in Table 3-1 are not permitted.   



Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 3 

 
3-11 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Policy S.5 Buildings Split by Safety Zone Boundaries 

When 50 percent or more of a proposed building, as determined by gross 
floor area (in square feet), is located within a safety zone, the requirements of 
that safety zone apply.  When less than 50 percent of the building is located 
within a safety zone, no safety restrictions apply.  However, no building or 
portion of a building is allowed within the CZ. 

 

 

 
 
 

For Illustrative Purposes Only 

Policy S.6 Land Uses Not Specified in Table 3-1 
For any proposed land use that is not specified in Table 3-1, the ALUC must 
determine the most similar land use based upon the land use definitions and 
guidance in Appendix A.  Once the most similar use is determined, standards 
for that use apply.   

Policy S.7 New Uses in Existing Buildings 
No ALUC review is required when new uses are proposed within a portion of 
an existing building, such as a multi-tenant shopping center.  Only those uses 
described in Table 3-1 as compatible or conditionally compatible are 
allowed; incompatible uses are not allowed.   

ALUC review is required when a new use (or multiple uses) is proposed to 
entirely occupy an existing building, provided that the maximum intensity is 
limited as described in Policies S.2 and S.3.  Intensities for new uses in 
existing buildings may be calculated using the method for determining 
people per acre described in Policy S.2. 

If the overall size of the existing building results in a calculated intensity that 
exceeds the maximum limit, an occupancy deed restriction can be recorded 
on the property limiting the occupancy of the building to no more than the 
maximum limit as calculated using the occupancy factors listed for each 
conditionally compatible use in Table 3-1.   

 
  



CHAPTER 3 
Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

3-12 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

DRAFT 

Table 3-2 (1 of 2) Examples 

Example A: Calculating Nonresidential Intensity  

A construction materials/lumber yard sales development is proposed in APZ I. 

Project Details: 

Site area: 
0.25 acres or 10,890 square feet 

Total building floor area: 
1,500 square feet  

Retail uses:  
Lumber, pipe, and other building/landscape 
construction materials 

Calculations: 

The proposed uses are in the “Lumber, Building 
Material Sales” category in Table 3-1 which has an 
FAR limit of 0.2.  Divide the floor area by the site area 
to calculate the FAR.   

1,500 s.f. ÷ 10,890 s.f. = 0.14 FAR 
 

Result: The FAR of 0.14 is less than the allowable maximum of 0.2 indicated in Table 3-1 for APZ I.  
Therefore, the proposed project is compatible.   
Example B:  Calculating Intensity for a Nonresidential Project with Multiple Uses 

A repair shop/warehouse project is proposed in APZ I. 

Project Details: 

Site area: 
0.25 acres or 10,890 square feet 

Repair Services area: 
7,000 square feet 

Warehouse area:  
9,000 square feet 

Total building floor area: 
16,000 square feet  

Calculations: 

The proposed uses are in the “Repair Services” (FAR 
of 0.11) and “Warehousing/Storage” (FAR of 1.00) 
categories in Table 3-1.  Calculate the proportion of 
total floor area for each component land use by 
dividing the floor area of each use by the total floor 
area. 

Repair Services:  7,000 s.f. ÷ 16,000 s.f. = 0.4375. 

Warehouse:  9,000 s.f. ÷ 16,000 s.f. = 0.5625. 

Calculate the amount of site area proportionate to 
each component’s floor area.   

Repair Services:  10,890 s.f. x 0.4375 = 4,764 s.f. 

Warehouse:  10,890 s.f. x 0.5625 = 6,126 s.f. 

Calculate the FAR for each component land use by 
dividing the floor area by the components share of 
site area. 

Repair Services:  7,000 s.f. ÷ 4,764 s.f. = 1.47. 

Warehouse:  9,000 s.f. ÷ 6,126 s.f. = 1.47 

Result: The FAR of 1.47 is more than the allowable maximum FARs of 0.11 and 1.0 indicated in Table 3-1 for 
repair services and warehousing/storage, respectively.  Therefore, the proposed project is not compatible. 

 
  



Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 3 

 
3-13 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Table 3-2 (2 of 2) Examples 
 

Example C:  Calculating Intensity for a Nonresidential Use Not Assigned a Maximum FAR in Table 3-1 

An informational building/gift shop is proposed as part of a planned nature exhibit in APZ I. 

Project Details: 

Site area: 
0.5 acres or 21,780 square feet 

Total building floor area: 
2,000 square feet  

Occupancy factor: 
170 square feet/person 

Calculations: 

The proposed use is in the “Nature Exhibits” category 
in Table 3-1.  Calculate the number of occupants of 
the proposed use by dividing total building floor 
area by the occupancy factor. 

2,000 s.f. ÷ 170 s.f./person = 11.76 occupants 

Calculate the intensity by dividing the number of 
building occupants by the site area in acres.   

11.76 occupants ÷ 0.5 acres = 23.5 people per 
acre 

Result: The intensity of 23.5 people per acre is less than the allowable maximum intensity of 25 people per 
acre indicated in Table 3-1 for APZ I.  Therefore, the proposed project is compatible.    
 
  



CHAPTER 3 
Safety Compatibility Policies and Standards

 

3-14 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

DRAFT 

  



AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION 
San Diego County

 

4-1 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

CHAPTER 4  

Airspace Protection 
Policies and Standards 

Chapter 4 provides an airspace protection boundary map for Naval Outlying 
Landing Field Imperial Beach (NOLF IB) and applicable policies and 
standards.   

Appendix E4 provides the technical basis for delineating the airspace 
protection boundary and establishing the policies and standards. 

In addition to the policies and standards established by this chapter, a 
project sponsor must also review all policies and standards established by 
this ALUCP. 

The policies of this chapter apply only to new development or 
redevelopment.  The policies do not apply to existing land uses, except as 
noted in Section 1.6 in Chapter 1. 

A list of the airspace protection policies is provided below. 

Policy A.1 Airspace Protection Boundary 

Policy A.2 FAA Notification Requirements 

Policy A.3 Hazards 

Policy A.4 Compatible Structure or Object 

Policy A.5 Conditionally Compatible Obstructions 

Policy A.6 Standards for the Protection of Flight Safety 

 

 

 

 



CHAPTER 4 
Airspace Protection Policies and Standards

 

4-2 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

What is an Obstruction? 

An obstruction is an object that exceeds the obstruction standards established in 14 CFR Part 77, as 
determined by the FAA.  Obstructions must be marked, lighted and identified in aeronautical 
publications so they are easily recognized by pilots. 

What is a Hazard? 

A hazard is an object or condition that would compromise flight safety as determined by the FAA.  

Airspace Protection Policies and Standards 

Policy A.1 Airspace Protection Boundary 

The airspace protection boundary, as depicted on Exhibit 4-1, establishes the 
area where the policies and standards of this chapter apply.   

The airspace protection boundary is based on the outermost edge of the 
following airspace surfaces: 

1. Part 77, Subpart B, 100:1 notification surface boundary 

2. Military helicopter object clearance surfaces 

3. The approach surfaces for the Runway 27 TACAN approach defined by 
the criteria in FAA Order 8260.3B, United States Standard for Terminal 
Instrument Procedures (TERPS) (which lie within the Subpart B, 100:1 
surface boundary) 



Imperial Beach

NOLF
Imperial Beach

P a c i f i c  O c e a n
BEYER BLVD

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

 S
T

SA
TU

R
N

 B
LV

D

CORONADO AV

§̈¦5

UV905

§̈¦805

D
AI

R
Y 

M
A

R
T 

R
D

MAIN ST

BR
O

AD
W

AY

ORANGE AV

PALOMAR STNAPLES ST

H
ILLTO

P D
R

De SOL BLVD

PICADOR BLVD

UV75

PALM AV

IMPERIAL BEACH BLVD

San Diego

Chula Vista
National City

M E X I C OU N I T E D  S T A T E S  O F  A M E R I C A

MONUMENT RD

SUNSET AV

LEON AV

GROVE AV

11
TH

 S
T

9T
H

 S
T

AL
LE

Y

S a n  D i e g o
B a y

Coronado

Exhibit 4-1

Airspace Protection
Boundary

Notes: 1. MSL = Mean Sea Level
           2. Airport elevation is 24 feet MSL
           3. The Airspace Protection Boundary is defined as the outer
               boundary of the combined Part 77 Subpart B, Subpart C
               and TERPS approach surface boundaries.  

Sources:  San Diego Geographic Information Source (SanGIS),
                2008 and 2011 (municipal boundaries, roads and
                highways); Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Air
                Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update for 
                Naval Air Station North Island and Naval Outlying Field
                Imperial Beach, California, 2011, (airport property
                boundary, runways, airfield, terrain); Ricondo & Associates,
                Inc., 2013, (proposed airspace protection boundary).

Prepared by:  Ricondo & Associates, Inc., March 2014.

LEGEND

Major Roads

Highways

Municipal Boundaries

Airspace Protection Policies and Standards
CHAPTER 4

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT contain
geographic information copyrighted by SanGIS.
All Rights Reserved.

Proposed Airspace Protection Boundary

Airport Property Boundary

north

3,600 ft.0

9

8

27
26

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Land Use Compatibility Plan
DRAFT

Terrain Elevations (in feet MSL)

High : 255

Low : 1

4-3



CHAPTER 4 
Airspace Protection Policies and Standards

  

4-4 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 



Airspace Protection Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 4 

4-5 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

4.1 FAA Notification of Proposed Construction or 
Alteration 

Federal law requires project sponsors of proposed structures or objects (including structures, 
antennas, trees, and mobile and temporary objects, such as construction cranes) that exceed 
Part 77, Subpart B, height criteria to submit to the FAA a Notice of Proposed Construction or 
Alteration (Form 7460-1).1  Additionally, the FAA may also require notification for proposed 
structures or objects that may cause signal reception interference with navigational aids 
(NAVAIDs).  Project sponsors may refer to this FAA website2 to determine if they are required 
to file Form 7460-1 with the FAA. 

Policy A.2 FAA Notification Requirements 

Project sponsors must comply with FAA notice requirements for proposed 
construction or alteration of objects exceeding certain heights or that could 
potentially interfere with NAVAIDs by filing of Form 7460-1 with the FAA, if 
required.  

Regardless of location, sponsors of proposed projects are required by 
federal law to notify the FAA of proposed structures or objects exceeding 
200 feet above ground level.3 

Project sponsors must include a copy of the FAA notice of determination 
letter with their consistency applications to the ALUC if FAA review is 
required. 

See Appendix B for the submittal requirements under ALUCP consistency 
determination application process. 

 

Exhibit 4-2 presents an example illustration related to the 14 CFR Part 77 Notification Criteria. 

 
  

1  Title 14, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 77, Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace, Subpart B, Notice Requirements, 
§77.7. 

2  Federal Aviation Administration, Department of Obstruction Evaluation/Airport Airspace Analysis (OE/AAA), Notice Criteria Tool, 
https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/gisTools/gisAction.jsp?action=showNoNoticeRequiredToolForm. 

3  Title 14, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 77, Safe, Efficient Use, and Preservation of the Navigable Airspace, Subpart B, Notice Requirements, 
§77.9(a). 



CHAPTER 4 
Airspace Protection Policies and Standards

 

4-6 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 
  



Exhibit 4-2

Notice of Federal Requirement

CHAPTER 4
Airspace Protection Policies and Standards

Notes:

��������	�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�������������������������
��!�������������������������������!����������
��������#$$�%'�*�����#$$�%'�*

2. https://oeaaa.faa.gov/oeaaa/external/gisTools/gisAction.jsp?action=showNoNoticeRequiredToolForm

<�����	��������������>���@�����X@�$Y����X[�
�������������\������]���������^�����[�>�]����_`�`������_`�`��


��������{�	�|�������}��������[�~���[�X���������

20,000’

Imaginary “Notice” Surface 
sloping 100:1 from the 
nearest point on the runway

Imaginary “Notice”
Surface - 200’ AGL

14 CFR §77.9(a) Any proposed construction or alteration more than 200 feet in height above ground level (AGL) at its site requires notice.
14 CFR §77.9(b) Any proposed construction or alteration penetrating imaginary surfaces in proximity to runways or heliports requires notice.

Runway

20,000’

Imaginary “Notice”
Surface - 200’ AGL

>�������������!������������������������������������������������������>���������������
�������
��������������������������'>���>����$Y��`�*��������������������������{��������������������������
�{��������]�����������������������������<�����������������{��������������[�������������������
���]���������[���������������������[����������������������������������!�����������������������
���������{�������������]���������[��������[�����[���{�����{����[����������������{����[� 
��������������������������>�������������������[����������������{����2

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
PREL IMINARY DR AFTDRAFT

4-7



CHAPTER 4 
Airspace Protection Policies and Standards

 

4-8 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 
  



Airspace Protection Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 4 

4-9 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

4.2 Hazards 
Hazards are obstructions or other adverse objects that FAA aeronautical study concludes 
would have a “substantial adverse effect” on a “significant volume of aeronautical 
operations.”4 Objects that are hazards to navigation have been so determined because they 
are not sufficiently clear from the normal pathways of aircraft, would affect the useable length 
of an existing or planned runway, or because they result in certain other adverse effects, such 
as electromagnetic interference, control tower visibility hindrances, or pilot distraction.5 

Policy A.3 Hazards 

Hazards, as determined by the FAA, are incompatible with the airspace 
protection policies and are not allowed.  

4.3 Compatibility of Structures and Objects 
After receiving a Form 7460-1 Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration, the FAA 
undertakes an obstruction evaluation and aeronautical study to determine the effect of the 
proposed structure or object on the use of airspace.  Through its study, the FAA determines if 
the proposed structure or object would be an obstruction to air navigation, a hazard to air 
navigation, or neither. 

Policy A.4 Compatible Structure or Object 

A proposed structure or object is compatible with the airspace policies if the 
FAA determines that it is not an obstruction to air navigation.   

Policy A.5 Conditionally Compatible Obstructions 

If a proposed structure or object is determined to be an obstruction, it may 
be made conditionally compatible with this ALUCP if all the following apply: 

1. As a result of an aeronautical study, the FAA determines that the 
obstruction would not be a hazard to air navigation  

2. FAA analysis determines that the object would not cause any of the 
following: 

(a) An increase in the ceiling or visibility minimums for an existing or 
planned instrument procedure6 

(b) A reduction of the operational efficiency and capacity of NOLF IB 

4  Federal Aviation Administration, Order JO 7400.2J, Procedures for Handling Airspace Matters , Sections 6-3-3 and 6-3-4.   
5  Federal Aviation Administration, Order JO 7400.2J, Procedures for Handling Airspace Matters , Section 6-3-3. 
6  A planned procedure is one that is formally on file with the FAA or that is consistent with the FAA-approved Airport Layout Plan. 



CHAPTER 4 
Airspace Protection Policies and Standards

 

4-10 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

(c) Conflict with visual flight rules (VFR) airspace 

3. Sponsors of a proposed structure or object must comply with the 
findings of FAA aeronautical studies (e.g., reduce structure height, 
install obstruction lighting systems and/or painting/marking of 
structures) performed under Part 77 regulations.7 

4.4 Standards for the Protection of Flight Safety  
Local agencies must consult with the FAA, the ALUC and the Commander of Naval Base 
Coronado when proposed land use projects within the Airspace Protection Boundary may 
cause any hazard described in the following sections. 

Policy A.6 Standards for the Protection of Flight Safety 

Policy A.6.1 Sources of Glare 

Highly reflective materials may cause visual after-images or flash blindness in 
pilots, thus compromising flight safety.  Such materials are incompatible 
unless the ALUC finds that either of the following conditions applies: 

1. The project sponsor has prepared a technical study, certified by a 
lighting engineer or an expert approved by the ALUC, demonstrating 
to the ALUC’s satisfaction that the proposed building materials would 
not create reflections intense enough to cause visual after-images or 
flash blindness in pilots on approach to either runway end at any time 
of day during any season of the year. 

2. The FAA has reviewed the land use project and has issued a final 
Notice of Determination within which it raises no objections to the 
potential glare impacts of the project. 

The FAA, in cooperation with the U.S. Department of Energy, has made 
available to the public a Solar Glare Analysis Tool that can be used to 
determine the potential for solar energy projects to cause glint and glare 
severe enough to interfere with the vision of pilots and controllers at airport 
traffic control towers.  See Appendix B for information about this tool.  

 

 

7  Federal Aviation Administration, Advisory Circular 70/7460-1K, Obstruction Marking and Lighting. 



Airspace Protection Policies and Standards 
CHAPTER 4 

4-11 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Policy A.6.2 Lighting 

The following lighting systems are incompatible with this ALUCP when 
casting light toward the approach paths of aircraft: 

� Searchlights  
� Laser lights  
� Sequenced flashing lights  
� Stroboscopic lights  

Any other lighting systems that, in the ALUC’s determination, produce effects 
that mimic airport identification lighting, runway end identification lighting or 
runway approach lighting are also incompatible with this ALUCP.  

Policy A.6.3 Sources of Dust, Water Vapor and Smoke 

Land use projects that, in the opinion of the ALUC, may create columns of 
dust, steam, water vapor, or smoke dense enough to impair pilot vision and 
compromise flight safety are incompatible with this ALUCP. 

Policy A.6.4 Electromagnetic Interference 

Sources of electromagnetic interference with aircraft instrumentation and 
ground-based radar and navigational aids are incompatible with this ALUCP.  
If a land use project may result in electromagnetic interference, the ALUC 
must consult with the FAA to ensure that the FAA is aware of the potential for 
electronic interference.  The ALUC must require the project sponsor to modify 
the land use project to comply with any FAA recommendations and 
conditions.    

Policy A.6.5 Sources of Thermal Plumes 

Land use projects that, in the opinion of the ALUC, may create thermal 
plumes with the potential to interfere with the safe control of aircraft are 
incompatible with this ALUCP.  Thermal plumes rising 200 feet or more above 
the ground at upward velocities of 14.1 feet per second or greater are 
capable of jeopardizing the safe control of aircraft.    

Policy A.6.6 Bird Attractants 

The following land uses, if they have the potential to attract birds, are 
incompatible with this ALUCP and are not permitted within the Airport 



CHAPTER 4 
Airspace Protection Policies and Standards

 

4-12 

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Influence Area (AIA).8   

1. Agricultural, recreational, open space activities and facilities that 
include: 

(a) Aquaculture activities conducted outside of fully enclosed 
buildings 

(b) Water features incorporated into landscaping, open space areas 
or golf courses are incompatible unless they have less than 2,500 
square feet of surface area and include measures to control 
hazardous wildlife 

2. Waste Disposal Operations  

(a) Municipal solid waste landfills 

(b) Trash transfer stations that handle waste, are not fully enclosed or 
that lack ventilation and air filtration systems adequate to control 
odors escaping to the outdoors (odor masking is not acceptable)   

(c) Commercial or institutional composting operations that accept 
food waste 

3. Water Management Facilities 

(a) Storm water management facilities that create above-ground 
standing water, unless required by other provisions of municipal, 
county, or State law.  Where storm water detention ponds are 
necessary and must be allowed, measures should be taken to 
minimize the risks of attracting potentially hazardous wildlife. 

(b) Wastewater treatment facilities and associated settling ponds, 
including any devices and/or systems used to store, treat, recycle, 
or reclaim municipal sewage or liquid industrial wastes and 
artificial marshes designed for wastewater treatment. 

(c) Wetlands mitigation projects, unless they provide unique 
functions that must remain onsite or are otherwise directed by 
state or federal law, state or federal regulatory decision, or court 
order. 

(d) Dredge spoil containment areas (also known as confined disposal 
facilities) if the spoils contain material that would attract 
hazardous wildlife. 

 

8  Federal Aviation Administration, Advisory Circular 150/5200-33B, Hazardous Wildlife Attractants on or Near Airports.  



AIRPORT LAND USE COMMISSION 
San Diego County

 

5-1 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

CHAPTER 5  

Overflight 
Compatibility Policies 

Chapter 5 provides an overflight area boundary map for Naval Outlying 
Landing Field Imperial Beach (NOLF IB) and applicable policies relating to 
aircraft overflight notification.  

Appendix E5 provides the technical basis for delineating the overflight area 
boundary and establishing the policies. 

In addition to the policies and standards established by this chapter, a 
project sponsor must also review all policies and standards established by 
this ALUCP. 

The policies of this chapter apply only to new development or 
redevelopment.  The policies do not apply to existing land uses. 

A list of the overflight compatibility policies is provided below. 

Policy O.1 Overflight Boundary 

Policy O.2 Overflight Notification 

 

 

 



CHAPTER 5 
Overflight Compatibility Policies

 

5-2 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

Overflight Compatibility Policies 

Policy O.1 Overflight Boundary 

The overflight boundary, as depicted on Exhibit 5-1, establishes the area where the 
policies of this chapter apply. 

Policy O.2 Overflight Notification 

Local agencies must adopt an ordinance mandating that the owner of any new 
dwelling unit located within the overflight area indicated on Exhibit 5-1 must record 
an overflight agreement with the Office of the County Recorder. 

Alternative methods of providing overflight notification are acceptable if approved 
by the Airport Land Use Commission. 

See Appendix B for a sample of an overflight notification agreement. 



NOLF
Imperial Beach

P a c i f i c  O c e a n

BEYER BLVD

H
O

LL
IS

TE
R

 S
T

SA
TU

R
N

 B
LV

D

CORONADO AV

§̈¦5

UV905

§̈¦805

D
AI

R
Y 

M
A

R
T 

R
D

MAIN ST

BR
O

AD
W

AY

ORANGE AV

PALOMAR STNAPLES ST

H
ILLTO

P D
R

De SOL BLVD

PICADOR BLVD

UV75

PALM AV

IMPERIAL BEACH BLVD

Coronado

M E X I C OU N I T E D  S T A T E S  O F  A M E R I C A

MONUMENT RD

SUNSET AV

LEON AV

GROVE AV

11
TH

 S
T

9T
H

 S
T

AL
LE

Y

Chula Vista

San Diego

Imperial Beach

S a n  D i e g o
B a y National City

Overflight Compatibility Policies
CHAPTER 5

Portions of this DERIVED PRODUCT contain
geographic information copyrighted by SanGIS.
All Rights Reserved.

9

8

27
26

Exhibit 5-1

Overflight Area Boundary

Note:        Airfield elevation is 24 feet above mean sea level (MSL)

Sources:  San Diego Geographic Information Source (SanGIS),
                2008 and 2011 (municipal boundaries, roads, rivers and
                highways); Naval Facilities Engineering Command, Air
                Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Update for 
                Naval Air Station North Island and Naval Outlying Field
                Imperial Beach, California, 2011, (airport property
                boundary, runways, airfield); Ricondo & Associates,
                Inc., 2013, (overflight area boundary).

Prepared by:  Ricondo & Associates, Inc., March 2014.

north

3,600 ft.0

Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Land Use Compatibility Plan
Preliminary Draft

LEGEND

Water

Major Roads

Highways

Municipal Boundaries

Overflight Area Boundary

Airport Property Boundary

DRAFT

5-3



CHAPTER 5 
Overflight Compatibility Policies

 

5-4 
Naval Outlying Landing Field Imperial Beach Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
DRAFT 

 





















Signature on file Signature on file

Signature on file Signature on file

































Signature on file Signature on file

Signature on file
Signature on file


















































	Agenda
	2.1
	2.2
	2.3
	2.4 
	2.5
	2.6
	5.1
	5.2
	5.3
	5.4
	5.5
	6.1



